
 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING AGENDA 
TUESDAY JANUARY 17, 2023 
 
 
7:30 PM REGULAR MEETING 
 
1. Call to Order 
   
2. Roll Call 

 
3. Annual Election of Chair and Vice Chair 

 
4. Approval of Minutes: 
 

a. December 6, 2022, City Council Meeting Minutes (For Information Only) 
 

5. Tom Koch (Applicant/Owner) is requesting that the City consider the following 
review/discussion for the property generally located at 5865 Koch’s Crossing (PID No’s. 11-
118-24-12-0004, 11-118-24-13-0003, 11-118-24-31-0005, 11-118-24-13-0002, 11-118-24-
42-0001, 11-118-24-42-0002) in Independence, MN: 

 
a. Final Plat to allow a 33-lot subdivision to be known as KOCH FARM 

SANCTUARY.   
 
6. PUBLIC HEARING: Chad Greenway (Applicant/Owner) requests that the City consider 

the following action for the properties located at 2171 Copeland Rd. and 2052 Nelson Rd., 
Independence, MN (PID No. 19-118-24-14-0001 and 19-118-24-13-0003): 
  

a. A minor subdivision to permit a lot line rearrangement to adjust the property line that 
runs east and west between the two subject properties.   
 

7. PUBLIC HEARING: William Stoddard (Applicant) and John Zeglin (Owner) requests that 
the City consider the following actions for the property located at 9285 US Hwy 12, 
Independence, MN (PID No. 18-118-24-21-0001): 
  

a. A comprehensive plan amendment to allow a portion of the property to be re-guided 
to the Urban Commercial - UC zoning district.  A portion of the property is already 
guided Urban Commercial. 
 

b. Rezoning of a portion of the property from AG-Agriculture to UC-Urban 
Commercial. 

 



763.479.0527                                                  1920 County Road 90                                          Fax: 763.479.0528 
                                                                       Independence, MN 55359 
                                                                    www.ci.independence.mn.us 

c. Conditional Use Permit to allow a planned unit commercial development on the 
subject property. The proposed development would include office warehouse and 
private garage condominium buildings.   

 
d. Site Plan Review to allow the proposed development.  
 
e. Preliminary Plat to allow the subdivision of the property into eight (8) residential lots 

and associated lots to allow the proposed commercial development. 
  
8. Open/Misc. 
 
9. Adjourn. 



 City of Independence           1 
City Council Meeting Minutes 6:30 p.m. December 6, 2022 

 

 

MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF 
THE INDEPENDENCE CITY COUNCIL 

TUESDAY, DECEMBER 6, 2022–6:30 P.M. 
City Hall Chambers 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER.  

 

Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, a regular meeting of the Independence City Council was called 
to order by Mayor Johnson at 6:30 p.m.  

 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE. 

 

Mayor Johnson led the group in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

  3.   ROLL CALL 
 

PRESENT: Mayor Johnson and Councilors McCoy, Betts, Spencer, and Grotting. 
ABSENT: None. 
STAFF: City Administrator Kaltsas, Assistant Administrator Simon, and City Attorney Vose. 
VISITORS: None. 

  
 
4. ****Consent Agenda**** 

All items listed under Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by Council and will 
be acted on by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items. If 
discussion is desired, that item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and will be 
considered separately. 

 
a. Approval of City Council Minutes from the November 15, 2022, Regular City 

Council Meeting. 
b. Approval of Accounts Payable (Batch # 1; Checks Numbered 21629-21650, Batch # 2; Checks 

Numbered 21651-21671). 
c. Pay Request #2 BV Construction – WHPS/North Memorial Garage. 

 
 
Motion by McCoy, seconded by Betts to approve the Consent Agenda. Ayes: Johnson, McCoy, 
Betts, Spencer, and Grotting. Nays: None. Absent: None. Abstain. None. MOTION DECLARED 
CARRIED. 5.0 
 

 
5. SET AGENDA – ANYONE NOT ON THE AGENDA CAN BE PLACED UNDER OPEN/MISC. 

Update on nuisance violation on Lake Haughey Rd. 
 

6. REPORTS OF BOARDS AND COMMITTEES BY COUNCIL AND STAFF 
 

Grotting attended the following meetings: 
• Planning Commission  
• Workshop 

 



 City of Independence           2 
City Council Meeting Minutes 6:30 p.m. December 6, 2022 

 

 

 
Spencer attended the following meetings: 

• Workshop 
• Personnel committee meeting 

 
 

McCoy attended the following meetings:  
• Workshop 
• Clint Bergman’s funeral – 1970’s Councilman (When he resigned from the Council, they 

appointed Marvin.) 
• View Santa 

 
Betts attended the following meetings: 

• Workshop 
 
Johnson attended the following meetings:  

• Workshop 
• Rosa Merz’ funeral /luncheon 
• Executive Hwy 55 Corridor Coalition  
• Breakfast with Congressman Dean Phillips  
• Clinton Bergman’s funeral  
• Hennepin County Truth in Taxation Hearing (motioned to reduce HC levy by 1%) 
• County Assessor meeting  
• Personnel Committee Meeting  
• Old Fashioned Lutefisk Dinner at Lyndale Lutheran Church 
• View Santa  
• Ridgeview Hospital Foundation Waconia  

 
Simon attended the following meetings: 

• Workshop   
• View Santa   
• Fall Ratio meeting with Hennepin County Assessor Joshua Hoogland 

 
Kaltsas attended the following meetings:  

• Workshop  
• MetCouncil and City of Medina  
• Fall Ratio meeting   
• Personnel Committee 

 
 

7. Consider Adoption of the Final 2023 Tax Levy and General Fund Budget and Associated Actions. 
 
The City is now ready to adopt 2023 General Fund levy, General Operating Budget, debt service levy, and 
Pioneer/Sarah Watershed Taxing District levy. The City must certify these before end of 2022. The 
budgeting process began in August, and we adopted a Preliminary Budget in September. We saw significant 
increase in property valuations for payable 2023 resulting that a potential for the City to capture some of 
that increase. We decided not to capture that, but we are reducing our rate by almost 7%. Taxpayers in 
Independence, with Hennepin County increase of 3.5%, over half of Independence will see a decrease in 
overall taxes. We don’t know what next year brings. A lot of cities have captured some of that windfall. In 



 City of Independence           3 
City Council Meeting Minutes 6:30 p.m. December 6, 2022 

 

 

the future if the values stay flat or go down, it will change our taxes going forward. It is good news for 
Independence residents and that we can fully fund our Police Department, and give them and our staff in 
increase as well as equipment, streets, roads, etc. The overall increase was 5.75% increase year over year. 
The Total General Fund Budget is $3,313,823.  
 
 

a. RESOLUTION 22-1206-01 – Adopting the 2023 General Fund Budget. 
 
 

Motion by Betts, seconded by McCoy to approve the 2023 General Fund Budget. Ayes: Johnson, 
McCoy, Betts, Spencer, and Grotting. Nays: None. Absent: None. Abstain. None. MOTION 
DECLARED CARRIED. 5.0 
 
McCoy thanked the staff and Council serving on boards to get a workable budget.  

 
 
b. RESOLUTION 22-1206-02 – Adopting the 2023 General Tax Levy. 
 

The 2023 Final Property Tax General Levy includes $313,499 Debt Service and $3,627,322 General Fund 
but does not include the Watershed Levy. 
 
Motion by Grotting, seconded by Spencer to approve the 2023 Final Property Tax General Levy. 
Ayes: Johnson, McCoy, Betts, Spencer, and Grotting. Nays: None. Absent: None. Abstain. None. 
MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 5.0 
 

 
c. RESOLUTION 22-1206-03 – Adopting the 2023 Pioneer Sarah Creek Watershed Management 
Commission Tax Levy. 

 
The 2023 Pioneer Sarah Creek Watershed Management Commission Tax Levy is $67,736.00  
 
Motion by Spencer, seconded by McCoy to approve the 2023 Pioneer Creek Watershed 
Management Commission Tax Levy.  Ayes: Johnson, McCoy, Betts, Spencer, and Grotting. Nays: 
None. Absent: None. Abstain. None. MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 5.0 
 
 
Spencer – Thank you to our long serving Commissioner Joel Baker who has held the budget flat. The slight 
increase is a tax formula shift rather than a budget shift. He has put the commission back in favor with the 
Board of Water and Soil, so we are getting things done.  Mayor Johnson asked staff to commended 
Commissioner Joel Baker for his service. He stated that he’s eager to hear the Minnehaha Water District 
cost as their rate is much higher even though it’s a smaller area. 
 
 
8. Ryan Nash (Applicant/Owner) is requesting the following action for the properties located at 2870 Lake 

Sarah Road (PID No’s. 16-118-24-13-0003 and 16-118-24-42-0001) in the City of Independence, MN: 
 

a. RESOLUTION 22-1206-04 – Considering approval of a minor subdivision to allow a lot 
combination that would create one parcel from the two existing parcels with a combined acreage of 
5.4 acres. 

  



 City of Independence           4 
City Council Meeting Minutes 6:30 p.m. December 6, 2022 

 

 

Kaltsas- The Applicant approached the City about the possibility of building an additional structure to an 
existing detached accessory building, and when we did calculations on that, the square footage of the 
proposed expansion would exceed what is allowed for the size lot he has. His lot is North of the BNSF 
railroad and North of Hwy 12 and South of Co Rd 92 at the Hwy 12 intersection. He has two properties: 
(North parcel) 2 acres and (South parcel) 3.4 acres, totaling 5.4 acres. The South lot is landlocked and has 
no direct access without going through his North property. He could combine these to enlarge the structure. 
The existing 1,200 sqft detached structure has a 400 sqft lean-to (1,600 sqft overall) and wants to add 640 
sqft on the north side totaling a 2,240 sqft proposed structure. Properties less than 2.5 acres allow a 1,850 
sqft maximum detached accessory structure. For properties greater than 2.5 acres, the City allows a 
maximum square footage that is proportionate to the amount of Upland acreage at 2% rate.  In the combined 
property conditions, he does have some wetland on the south portion of the property but would have 3.18 
Upland acres which gives him a 2,770 SF Allowable Detached Accessory Structure. He’s proposing 2,240 
SF, so that all works if properties are combined. Some noted things to consider: 1) The South lot does not 
have any public frontage. 2) The existing detached accessory building meets applicable building setbacks. 
The proposed expansion of the structure will meet all applicable setbacks in the after condition. 3) The 
requisite drainage and utility easements would need to be dedicated to the City, and the applicant must 
execute the necessary documents to convey the easements as determined necessary by the City. The 
Planning Commissioners discussed the proposal and thought it was straight forward and was a good idea to 
combine lots for those reasons. They asked of other lots were landlocked like this, but there is just a rare 
handful.  Ultimately, the Planning Commission recommended approval. 
 
Johnson- Do you have any idea when this property was split off? 
Kaltsas- I tried to look back on description or taxing body, there is no other separation. There is a section 
line there, but no others were split on those lines. It’s an odd one.  
Johnson- I am assuming it was originally a part of the farm on the corner and maybe divided off at the same 
point in time. If you find the dates, I’d be curious what the history is on the separation.  Are these new 
property owners? 
Grotting – Yes, I had represented them for their purchase somewhat recently but have nothing to do with 
this project. 
Johnson – Previous owners had hosted Nite to Unite gatherings.  

 
 
Motion by McCoy, seconded by Grotting to approve RESOLUTION 22-1206-05 for a minor 
subdivision to allow a lot combination for the properties generally located at 2870 Lake Sarah 
Road.  Ayes: Johnson, McCoy, Betts, Spencer, and Grotting. Nays: None. Absent: None. Abstain. 
None. MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 5.0 
 
 
9. Annual Designation of the Independence City Hall as the Official Polling Place for 2023 Election. 

 
a. RESOLUTION 22-1206-05 – Establishing the Independence City Hall as the official polling place 

for 2023. 
 
Motion by Spencer, seconded by Betts to approve RESOLUTION NO. 22-1206-05 designating the 
2023 Polling Place as the City of Independence City Hall.  Ayes: Johnson, McCoy, Betts, Spencer, 
and Grotting. Nays: None. Absent: None. Abstain. None. MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 5.0 
 
 
10. Approval of Compensation Analysis and Personnel Committee Recommendation to Update 
the Position Classifications, Range, and Scale Compensation Model. 



 City of Independence           5 
City Council Meeting Minutes 6:30 p.m. December 6, 2022 

 

 

 
b. RESOLUTION 22-1206-06 – Considering approval of the amended pay grade and compensation 

model developed in conjunction with ABDO Solutions. 
 
Kaltsas- We talked about this at a Workshop and the Personnel Committee discussed it prior to that. The 
City on a somewhat regular basis tries to look at competitive wages for various positions within the City and 
allows us to make sure we are in compliance with the state’s pay equity requirements. With market and 
inflation, we asked ABDO Financial Consultant to put together a compensation analysis of pay grade, scale, 
and individual positions. With pay grade and scales, compared with similar cities and types of positions, 15 
cities were looked at. Looking to ensure compensation for each employee and ranges of pay grades were 
near the 50% mark or a little above as far as averages. Noted in the study results, the minimum pay in pay 
grade was low for the market, but the max was competitive near where we wanted it to be. With that we 
talked about each position and pay structure. I asked ABDO if it’s the right structure with 8 grade levels. 
ABDO opened it up to a 12-grade system that allows flexibility for movement. In the past we created other 
positions when we have had turnover from retirement. A Public Works Supervisor role was created when 
the PW Director retired and slotting new positions within a pay grade scale can be challenging. This then 
allows for creating positions as we grow as a city. The 12-grade system is the right way to do that. Within 
the scale it shows pay grades rated based on points, and those points are a standardized scaling system. Once 
you are placed on the scale based on points, you have pay grade minimum, midpoint, and maximum ranges. 
Employees would have to stay within that range. The scale gets increased by Cost-Of-Living Allowance/ 
COLA annually by the City Council and it’s annually determined by the Council. Historically, it has been 
about a 2% COLA. We are recommending 7% COLA, and this is a makeup for employees having a 2% year 
over year when inflation had been much higher than that. The creation of the new Administrative Services 
Director position replaces and reclassifies the Assistant City Administrator position to make sense with job 
duties being done. Other cities dealt with this similarly.  
 
Grotting- Are the new and old positions both the same pay grade and points? 
Kaltsas – They are a little different, with adding oversight of some staff duties. The Administrative Services 
Director will have two reports of the two administrative staff in the office. This was part of a move we had 
started a while ago and then the retirement timing put it on hold a bit.  But now Amber is moving into that 
position. 
Grotting- Say the market goes very flat and wages stay very depressed and flat over a long time. The cost of 
living would justify an increase. Does that play into the chart, and how you go forward? Could potentially 
next year if some significant predictions of recession and unemployment increase, how would the chart 
work when inflation goes up? 
Kaltsas- The chart is there to provide the structure to maintain the separation between various jobs based on 
function, duty, responsibility, education, etc. The scale we’d be adopting is one that can be sustained at no 
increase, or when no COLA is necessary. Recessionary or budgetary pressures, etc. We could hold this scale 
flat and not have any increase across the board. If we provide a COLA to our employees, the whole scale 
goes up by that percentage.  
Grotting- COLA and inflation could continue to go up but say if unemployment is high and wages are 
stagnant, it is bigger and deeper than just COLA. It’s all circumstances. 
Kaltsas- Yes, we use COLA as a metric. There are other factors. 
Johnson – We realized last year that we should have gone up another percentage point, but then we did not. 
Grotting – God bless our wonderful staff. We appreciate everyone so much.  
 
 
Motion by McCoy, seconded by Grotting to approve RESOLUTION NO. 22-1206-06 of the 
compensation package.  Ayes: Johnson, McCoy, Betts, Spencer, and Grotting. Nays: None. 
Absent: None. Abstain. None. MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 5.0 



 City of Independence           6 
City Council Meeting Minutes 6:30 p.m. December 6, 2022 

 

 

 
 
11. Open/Misc. 
 

The Lake Haughey report:  
Kaltsas- I was updated after Thanksgiving on 3585 Lake Haughey Rd. We’ve been working on 
enforcement of nuisance violations since 2021, and we had initiated criminal charge against the property 
owner in late 2021 after trying to work with the owner for a while to correct it internally. Because we 
still get quite a few calls for this property and I think Council does too, I wanted to give an update. We 
met in the Fall with both of the owners, an attorney who had who represented one of the owners at the 
time, the City Prosecuting Attorney, Peggy Larkin of Carson, Clelland, and Schreder, and City staff with 
options to resolve the issues. Nothing came out of that, and they eventually terminated the one attorney 
who was representing them. So they went back to court the week before Thanksgiving, and one of the 
defendants had asked the court for additional time in order to hire a new attorney, one as a real-estate 
expert. The Judge gave them until January 27, 2023. So we are 18-months deep in the court system with 
zero resolution. It’s frustrating for us. We’ve told the attorney to go at everything and got nothing. These 
are not clean-easy-simple. 
Johnson- All neighbors expect action to be taken immediately and it doesn’t work that way.  
Attorney Vose- The prosecuting attorney is working on this with staff, but I want to acknowledge that 
more than annually Administrator Kaltsas asks me if we are up to speed with what other cities are doing 
to deal with problem properties. How to deal with properties that don’t get cleaned up is a problem 
being shared across the state. It’s a problem because in MN we (Government Officials) are trying to 
balance landowner rights (the right to do with your property generally speaking what you want within 
legal confines) against everyone around them who is trying to do the same thing and also enjoy their 
properties. Balancing that is very difficult unfortunately. Staff is quite on top of that, and Mark and I 
have discussed what can be updated in the nuisance code provisions or other code provisions that give 
the City some tools however imperfect to deal with them. It’s a work in progress, and we will stay on it. 
Unfortunately, prosecution is the shortest line from point A to point B, but it doesn’t always lead to 
compliance.  But prosecution is the first step typically that we end up taking, and that doesn’t even 
always lead to compliance.   
Johnson- Even if the Judge takes action on March 27th, we are also dealing with Minnesota winters 
which hinders things. 
Kaltsas - Right. We’re talking about a fence in the right of way, boxes of debris,  
Grotting- How much personal fencing is in our ROW? Don’t we have the practice to go clear things out 
of the ROW? 
Kaltsas- Life safety things we could say, but the problem is that the fence has been there for a while. We 
have been actively trying to get – that’s a part of our action. The fence is in our ROW and so is half of 
the debris, there’s so much stuff.  If it were an obstacle or obstruction, we would pull it, and this one 
might be because it is really tight there for the plows. If there was a car/trailer parked there, rocks, we 
could go move it if they were unwilling, but this is 450 linear feet of stuff there.  
Grotting- Is the defense’s argument that it is an “undue burden” to deal with? 
Kaltsas – There is no defense in this case. They are in violation of our ordinance, and the pictures and 
testimonials are compelling. I don’t know that they have an argument, but this is the process. If someone 
is willing to go to court, have an action and a lawsuit against their property, continue to fight it by hiring 
and firing attorneys, and then show up asking the Judge for more time, the Judge is going to give it. 
Grotting – Wasn’t there a question filling the opposite side of the property, the shorelines? 
Kaltsas- Yes, that is a different issue. The DNR had initially looked at that issue, but then that person 
left and now nobody at the DNR was doing enforcement on that particular issue. That is being revisited.  



 City of Independence           7 
City Council Meeting Minutes 6:30 p.m. December 6, 2022 

 

 

Johnson- A week from tomorrow the Canadian Pacific Holiday Train comes into Loretto at 4:15pm and 
heads into Buffalo about 6:30pm, or one could sit in the car along Hwy 55 and stay warm like I’ve done 
before. 

 
12. Adjourn. 
 

Motion by Spencer, second by Grotting to adjourn the meeting at 7:13 pm. 
 
Meeting adjourned. 

 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
Linda Johnson / Recording Secretary 



5865 Koch’s Crossing – Final Plat Review  
 Page 1 
 

City of Independence 
 

Consideration for Final Plat of a Proposed 33 Lot Cluster Development  
to be Known as KOCH FARM SANCTUARY on the Subject Properties  

Generally Located at 5865 Koch’s Crossing  
 

To: Planning Commission 
From: Mark Kaltsas, City Planner 

Meeting Date: April 19, 2022 
Applicant: Tom Koch 

Owner: William P Koch Et Al Trustees 
Location: 5865 Koch’s Crossing 

 
Request: 
Tom Koch (Applicant/Owner) is requesting that the City consider the following 
review/discussion for the property generally located at 5865 Koch’s Crossing (PID No’s. 11-
118-24-12-0004, 11-118-24-13-0003, 11-118-24-31-0005, 11-118-24-13-0002, 11-118-24-42-
0001, 11-118-24-42-0002) in Independence, MN: 
 

a. Final Plat to allow a 33-lot subdivision to be known as KOCH FARM 
SANCTUARY.   

 
  
Property/Site Information: 
The overall property is comprised of six (6) individual properties located on the north and south 
sides of Koch’s Crossing between County Road 90 and Independence Road.   The property also 
touches Brei Kessel Road on the south. There is an existing home and a series of detached 
accessory buildings located across several of the properties.  The properties are comprised 
primarily of agriculture land, a pond/wetlands.   
 

Property Information: 5865 Koch’s Crossing 
 Zoning: Agriculture 
 Comprehensive Plan: Rural Residential 

Acreage: ~141 acres  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



5865 Koch’s Crossing – Final Plat Review  
 Page 2 
 

5865 Koch’s Crossing Aerial 

 
Discussion: 
The City approved the rezoning, conditional use permit, variance and preliminary plat for the 
proposed development in 2022.  The applicant has now submitted an application for final plat of 
the property for a 33-unit subdivision developed across the 6 subject properties.  The City 
reviews the final plat to ensure consistency with the approved preliminary plat.  There were 
several items that were noted during the review of the preliminary plat which have been 



5865 Koch’s Crossing – Final Plat Review  
 Page 3 
 

addressed and revised by the applicant. The City provided guidance and feedback during the 
preliminary plat review process and has now completed a comprehensive and detailed review of 
the proposed final plat and associated construction drawings.   
 
Proposed Cluster Subdivision  
The applicant has prepared the final plat based on the cluster development standards.  The 
applicant is proposing to meet all applicable cluster subdivision standards.  The cluster 
subdivision standards are as follows: 
 
Subd. 4. Cluster development conditional use permit. Cluster development is a conditional use in the Rural 

Residential District, subject to the provisions of subsections 520.09, 520.11 and 520.13 of this Code.  

(a) Purpose. The purpose of the cluster development conditional use permit is to promote the creative and 
efficient use of land. The provisions of this subdivision are intended to:  

(1) Protect natural features in common open space.  

(2) Improve the arrangement of structures, facilities and amenities on a site.  

(3) Preserve the rural character of the community.  

(b)     Criteria.  A cluster development is a residential development in which a number of single-family dwelling 
units are grouped on smaller lots than in conventional developments, while the remainder of the tract is 
preserved as open space.  If the following standards are complied with, density of one unit per four acres is 
permitted. 

 
(1) The development parcel must be 40 or more acres in size;  

 
(2) A minimum of 50% of the gross acreage of the subject property, excluding right of way dedicated for 

State, County and Existing City Roads, must be preserved as open space, recreational space or 
agricultural use;  

 
(3) A minimum of 50% of the preserved open space, recreational space or agricultural use land must be 

useable.  Wetlands, streams, lakes, ponds and lands within the 100 year flood plain elevation are not 
considered to be useable for the purpose of this subsection;  

 
(4) Woodland, wetlands and topography must be preserved in a natural state, with modification allowed 

when no reasonable alternative exists; or, if the site lacks unique features such as woodlands and 
wetlands, the site must be designed and constructed in such a manner that residential building sites are 
integrated into a created natural environment including reforestation, wetlands enhancement, and 
vegetative screening of structures; 

 
(5) The preliminary plat must show a primary and secondary individual sewage treatment site for each 

dwelling unit and must be supported with soil test reports indicating the adequacy of each proposed 
location; provided, that shared treatment systems within a development may be acceptable if the 
plat identifies two or more suitable sites for the shared system and the city council approves the 
proposal;  

 
(6) Lots within the development must have a minimum lot size of 1.5 contiguous buildable acres.  Buildable 

acreage must not be separated by streams, wetlands, or other physical impediments; 
 

(7) Lots within the development must have a minimum of 150 feet of frontage on an improved public road 
or street, except lots fronting on the terminus of a cul-de-sac shall have no less than 50 feet of 
frontage. 

 



5865 Koch’s Crossing – Final Plat Review  
 Page 4 
 

(8) Open space must be designated in the development as one or more outlots and must be owned either by 
a homeowners’ association consisting of the owners of all of the residential lots in the development or 
by the owners of the residential lots, as tenants in common; 

 
(9) The developer must record against the development a declaration of covenants that places responsibility 

for management of the open space in a homeowners association and provides for the assessment of 
management costs to the association members and memorialized in an agreement with the City; 

 
(10) All utilities must be placed underground;  

 
(11) All residential streets within the cluster development must be paved with a bituminous surface according 

to the city street standards in effect at the time of the development;  
 

(12) A development agreement must be entered into with the city. 
 
Lots Permitted Based on Cluster Subdivision  
  
Total Area: 141.35 acres 
  138.75 net acres (subtracting CSAH 90 right of way) 
  138.75 x 50%:  69.40 acres of open space required  
     69.40 acres of open space provided 
  50% of 69.40 acres: 34.70 acres of useable open space required 
     40.60 acres of useable open space provided 
  33 Lots Proposed 
 
Based on the cluster development standards, the applicant is proposing to develop the property in 
accordance with applicable provisions with several noted exceptions and or issues. 
 
The City has completed a detailed review of the proposed subdivision as follows: 
 

1. The proposed plan proposes to realign Koch’s Crossing at the point of intersection with 
CSAH 90. The realignment of Koch’s Crossing likely aids the sight lines at the CSAH 
90/Koch’s Crossing intersection.  Hennepin County has approved the relocation of 
Koch’s Crossing and associated turn lane plans.  The County is requiring a northbound 
turn lane from CSAH 90 to Koch’s Crossing.  This turn lane combined with the relocated 
intersection should help to mitigate traffic impacts associated with the proposed 
development.   

 
2. Koch’s Crossing will be fully upgraded to the City’s improved street standards and will 

tie into the eastern half that was recently upgraded as a part of the Serenity Hills 
subdivision.   

 
3. The City had asked the developer to provide for a future right of way connection to the 

west to accommodate a future road connection.  The proposed final plat accommodates a 
future right of way that would allow a street connection to the west between Lot 1, Block 
10 and Lot 3, Block 11.  The applicant is not proposing to construct a stub street at this 
time. 



5865 Koch’s Crossing – Final Plat Review  
 Page 5 
 

 

 
4. The City requested that the applicant provide additional right of way around the 

perimeter bulb of the existing Brei Kessel cul-de-sac.  The additional right of way would 
allow the bulb to be constructed to the City’s standard at some point in the future.  The 
applicant is dedicating an easement that will allow the expansion.  
 

 
 

5. The City requested that the applicant provide a paved trail connection between the cul-
de-sac bulb on Brei Kessel and the cul-de-sac bulb proposed on William Way.  The 
applicant is proposing to construct a new bituminous trail connection between the 
existing and proposed developments.    



5865 Koch’s Crossing – Final Plat Review  
 Page 6 
 

 

 
 

 
6. The City noted the existence of an existing RIM (reinvest in Minnesota) easement. The 

applicant has removed the existing RIM easement from the private lots as recommended. 
 

7. The applicant has provided information verifying each lot can accommodate a primary 
and secondary septic site. 

 
8. The applicant shows all applicable building setbacks on each proposed lot along with a 

proposed house pad.  Applicable setbacks are as follows: 
 

• Front Yard Setback: 85’ from centerline of road 
• Corner Yard Setback: 52’ from property line 
• Side Yard Setback: 30’ from property line 
• Rear Yard Setback: 40’ from property line 
• Wetland Setback: 10’ from edge of wetland buffer 

 



5865 Koch’s Crossing – Final Plat Review  
 Page 7 
 

9. The applicant is proposing to preserve existing trees located within the proposed open 
space/Outlots.   
 

10. The City requires that the applicant provide a planting and maintenance plan for the 
Outlot areas to be maintained by the HOA.  The applicant has provided the City with a 
disturbed upland buffer planting and maintenance plan.   
 

11. The applicant is proposing to place a conservation easement over and across Outlot D.  
This will provide an additional layer of protection and preservation of the pond and 
woodlands. 
 

12. The proposed final plat is not proposed to be phased and all public improvements will be 
constructed at the same time.  Developing the public improvements at one time should 
help mitigate the impacts of construction on the surrounding properties.  

 
13. The existing portion of Koch’s Crossing that is proposed to be eliminated will be 

formally vacated at the same time as Council consideration of the final plat.  The 
applicant has filed a petition to the City seeking vacation of a portion of Koch’s Crossing.  
Vacation of the portion of Koch’s Crossing will be subject to the dedication and 
construction of the new right of way and associated street. 
 

14. The City’s water resource engineers have completed a detailed review of the proposed 
plans noted in the review letter dated January 3, 2023, by Hakanson Anderson.  The 
applicant will be required to revise the plans in accordance with all applicable comments. 
 

15. Applicant will be required to secure all applicable approvals from Pioneer Sarah Creek 
Watershed. 
 

16. It is noted that a Wetland Replacement plan will be required for the wetland impacts that are 
proposed. The Applicant shall submit a Wetland Replacement Plan for review and approval.  

 
17. The City’s engineering consultant has reviewed the plans and prepared a detailed review 

of the final plat as noted in the letter dated January 3, 2023, by Bolton & Menk.  The 
applicant will be required to make all applicable revisions to the plans based on the 
comments provided. 

 
18. The proposed subdivision is subject to the City’s Park dedication requirements.  The City 

is not requesting any public park land within the development.  It is anticipated that the 
proposed useable open space would be fully accessible to the development and there 
appears to be good connectivity to all of the proposed Outlots.  The standard park 
dedication requirement of $3,500 per lot will be applicable to all newly developed lots.  
The City has agreed to credit the development for the six (6) existing parcels (this would 
reduce the total from 33 to 27 lots).  The total park dedication for this property will be 
$94,500.00 (27 lots x $3,500 per lot). 

 



5865 Koch’s Crossing – Final Plat Review  
 Page 8 
 

 
Recommendation: 
The Planning Commission is being asked to consider the request for Final Plat with the following 
findings and conditions: 
 

1. The proposed Final Plat meets all applicable conditions and restrictions stated Chapter V, 
Section 510, Zoning, in the City of Independence Zoning Ordinance. 
 

2. City Council approval of the Final Plat will be subject to the following: 
 

a. The Applicant shall make all revisions required and as noted within this report, by the 
Planning Commission and City Council.  

 
b. The Applicant shall address all comments and applicable requirements pertaining to 

the water resources and engineering as outlined in the associated review letters from 
Hakanson Anderson Associates and Bolton & Menk, Inc. 

 
c. The Applicant shall make all recommended and required revisions and receive final 

approval for all proposed and regulated improvements from Hennepin County. 
 

d. The Applicant shall comply with all applicable regulations and conditions prescribed 
by Pioneer Sarah Creek Watershed Management Commission.  

 
e. The Applicant shall enter into a development agreement with the City for this 

development. 
 

f. The Applicant shall provide a letter of credit as established by the development 
agreement for all public improvements associated with this development. 

 
g. The Applicant shall provide the City with copies of the HOA agreement and 

covenants, including information related to the maintenance of the common driveway. 
 

h. The Applicant shall obtain all necessary City, County, PCA and other regulatory 
agency approval and permits prior to construction. 

 
i. The Applicant shall pay the park dedication fees in accordance with the terms defined 

in the Development Agreement. The Applicant shall consent to the establishment of 
the storm sewer improvement tax district. 
 

j. The Applicant shall enter into a storm water maintenance agreement pertaining to the 
required storm water ponds to be located on the property. 

 
k. The Applicant shall submit a Wetland Replacement Plan for review and approval 

 
l. The Applicant shall provide prospective buyers with the Letter of Information 

Pertaining to the subdivision as prepared by the City. 



5865 Koch’s Crossing – Final Plat Review  
 Page 9 
 

 
m. Koch’s Crossing will need to be vacated by the City.  Vacation of the right of way will 

need to correspond with the establishment and construction of the new right of way 
and road. 

 
3. The Applicant shall pay for all costs associated with the City’s review of the final plat. 

 
4.  If the final plat is approved by the city council, the subdivider shall record it with the 

county recorder within 90 days after the date of approval; otherwise, the approval of the 
final plat shall be considered void. 

 
 

Attachments: 
1. Application 
2. Final Plat 
3. Construction Plans 
4. Vacation Exhibits 
5. Buffer Planting and Maintenance Plan 
6. Detailed Engineering Review Letters 

         

 
 











1

2

3

2

3

4

1 2 3

1

2

3

4OUTLOT  C

OUTLOT A

3

2

1

321

1

8

11

3

O
U

TL
O

T 
 B

OUTLOT  D

5

4

4

5

1

2

2

1

1

1

6

7

4

1

2

6

5

1

9

3

OUTLOT  E

10

KOCH'S CROSSING

WILLIAM

WAY

SHEET NO.          OF         SHEETS

REV. NO.     DATE          BY                          DESCRIPTION DESIGNED    DRAWN

CHECKED
DATE:

PROJECT NO:

Engineers & Land Surveyors, Inc.
SSOCIATES

9 West Division Street
Buffalo, MN 55313
(763)682-4727
Fax: (763)682-3522

www.ottoassociates.com

201 6-3-22

18-0199
TOM KOCH

INDEPENDENCE, MN

COVER SHEETKOCH FARM SANCTUARY

N

Feet
0 200 400

Vicinity Map

N

KOCH FARM SANCTUARY
INDEPENDENCE, MN

I hereby certify that this plan, specification, or report was prepared by
me or under my direct supervision and that I am a duly Licensed
Professional Engineer under the laws of the State of Minnesota.

Paul E.  Otto
License # 40062                    Date:



KOCHS         CROSSING

WILLIAM          
   WAY

1
2

3

2

3

4

1 2 3

1

2

3

4OUTLOT  C

OUTLOT A

3

2

1

321

1

8

10

3

O
U

TL
O

T 
B

OUTLOT  D

5
4

4

5

1

2

2

1

1

1

6
7

4

1

2

6

5

1

9

3

OUTLOT  E

11

SHEET NO.          OF         SHEETS

REV. NO.     DATE          BY                          DESCRIPTION DESIGNED    DRAWN

CHECKED
DATE:

PROJECT NO:

Engineers & Land Surveyors, Inc.
SSOCIATES

9 West Division Street
Buffalo, MN 55313
(763)682-4727
Fax: (763)682-3522

www.ottoassociates.com

202 6-3-22

18-0199
TOM KOCH

INDEPENDENCE, MN

KOCH FARM SANCTUARY

N

GRADING PLAN (OVERVIEW)

Feet
0 200 400

I hereby certify that this plan, specification, or report was prepared by
me or under my direct supervision and that I am a duly Licensed
Professional Engineer under the laws of the State of Minnesota.

Paul E.  Otto
License # 40062                    Date:



KOCHS                          CROSSING

W
IL

LI
AM

   
   

W
AY

C
O

U
N

TY
   

 R
O

AD
   

 N
O

.  
  9

0

1

2

3

OUTLOT A

3

5

4

1

2

2

1

1

1

2

1

3

O
U

TL
O

T 
B

OUTLOT  C

OUTLOT  C

SHEET NO.          OF         SHEETS

REV. NO.     DATE          BY                          DESCRIPTION DESIGNED    DRAWN

CHECKED
DATE:

PROJECT NO:

Engineers & Land Surveyors, Inc.
SSOCIATES

9 West Division Street
Buffalo, MN 55313
(763)682-4727
Fax: (763)682-3522

www.ottoassociates.com

203

18-0199
TOM KOCH

INDEPENDENCE, MN

GRADING PLAN (NORTH)KOCH FARM SANCTUARY

N

Feet
0 60 120

6-3-22

I hereby certify that this plan, specification, or report was prepared by
me or under my direct supervision and that I am a duly Licensed
Professional Engineer under the laws of the State of Minnesota.

Paul E.  Otto
License # 40062                    Date:



WILLIAM          
   WAY

1

2

3

3

4

OUTLOT  C

32

1

1

8

O
U

TL
O

T 
B

5

4

5

6

7

6

OUTLOT  D

SHEET NO.          OF         SHEETS

REV. NO.     DATE          BY                          DESCRIPTION DESIGNED    DRAWN

CHECKED
DATE:

PROJECT NO:

Engineers & Land Surveyors, Inc.
SSOCIATES

9 West Division Street
Buffalo, MN 55313
(763)682-4727
Fax: (763)682-3522

www.ottoassociates.com

204

18-0199
TOM KOCH

INDEPENDENCE, MN

KOCH FARM SANCTUARY

N

GRADING PLAN
(EAST CENTRAL)

Feet
0 60 120

6-3-22

I hereby certify that this plan, specification, or report was prepared by
me or under my direct supervision and that I am a duly Licensed
Professional Engineer under the laws of the State of Minnesota.

Paul E.  Otto
License # 40062                    Date:



WILLIAM          
   WAY

1

2

3

1

2

3

2

1

32

1
8

4

1

7

9

11

OUTLOT  C

OUTLOT  D

OUTLOT  D

SHEET NO.          OF         SHEETS

REV. NO.     DATE          BY                          DESCRIPTION DESIGNED    DRAWN

CHECKED
DATE:

PROJECT NO:

Engineers & Land Surveyors, Inc.
SSOCIATES

9 West Division Street
Buffalo, MN 55313
(763)682-4727
Fax: (763)682-3522

www.ottoassociates.com

205

18-0199
TOM KOCH

INDEPENDENCE, MN

KOCH FARM SANCTUARY

N

GRADING PLAN
(WEST CENTRAL)

Feet
0 60 120

10

6-3-22

I hereby certify that this plan, specification, or report was prepared by
me or under my direct supervision and that I am a duly Licensed
Professional Engineer under the laws of the State of Minnesota.

Paul E.  Otto
License # 40062                    Date:



W
IL

LI
AM

   
   

   
W

AY

2

3

4

3

2

10

OUTLOT  D

4

5

9

OUTLOT  E

SHEET NO.          OF         SHEETS

REV. NO.     DATE          BY                          DESCRIPTION DESIGNED    DRAWN

CHECKED
DATE:

PROJECT NO:

Engineers & Land Surveyors, Inc.
SSOCIATES

9 West Division Street
Buffalo, MN 55313
(763)682-4727
Fax: (763)682-3522

www.ottoassociates.com

206

18-0199
TOM KOCH

INDEPENDENCE, MN

KOCH FARM SANCTUARY

N

GRADING PLAN (SOUTH)

Feet
0 60 120

6-3-22

I hereby certify that this plan, specification, or report was prepared by
me or under my direct supervision and that I am a duly Licensed
Professional Engineer under the laws of the State of Minnesota.

Paul E.  Otto
License # 40062                    Date:



SHEET NO.          OF         SHEETS

REV. NO.     DATE          BY                          DESCRIPTION DESIGNED    DRAWN

CHECKED
DATE:

PROJECT NO:

Engineers & Land Surveyors, Inc.
SSOCIATES

9 West Division Street
Buffalo, MN 55313
(763)682-4727
Fax: (763)682-3522

www.ottoassociates.com

207

18-0199
TOM KOCH

INDEPENDENCE, MN

SWPPP - PROJECT INFORMATIONKOCH FARM SANCTUARY
6-3-22

¹  

²  

N

N

I hereby certify that this plan, specification, or report was prepared by
me or under my direct supervision and that I am a duly Licensed
Professional Engineer under the laws of the State of Minnesota.

Paul E.  Otto
License # 40062                    Date:



SHEET NO.          OF         SHEETS

REV. NO.     DATE          BY                          DESCRIPTION DESIGNED    DRAWN

CHECKED
DATE:

PROJECT NO:

Engineers & Land Surveyors, Inc.
SSOCIATES

9 West Division Street
Buffalo, MN 55313
(763)682-4727
Fax: (763)682-3522

www.ottoassociates.com

208

18-0199
TOM KOCH

INDEPENDENCE, MN

KOCH FARM SANCTUARY
6-3-22

STORMWATER POLLUTION
PREVENTION PLAN NARRATIVE

I hereby certify that this plan, specification, or report was prepared by
me or under my direct supervision and that I am a duly Licensed
Professional Engineer under the laws of the State of Minnesota.

Paul E.  Otto
License # 40062                    Date:



KOCHS                          CROSSING

W
IL

LI
AM

   
   

W
AY

C
O

U
N

TY
   

 R
O

AD
   

 N
O

.  
  9

0

1

2

3

OUTLOT A

3

5

4

1

2

2

1

1

1

2

1

3

O
U

TL
O

T 
B

OUTLOT  C

OUTLOT  C

SHEET NO.          OF         SHEETS

REV. NO.     DATE          BY                          DESCRIPTION DESIGNED    DRAWN

CHECKED
DATE:

PROJECT NO:

Engineers & Land Surveyors, Inc.
SSOCIATES

9 West Division Street
Buffalo, MN 55313
(763)682-4727
Fax: (763)682-3522

www.ottoassociates.com

209

18-0199
TOM KOCH

INDEPENDENCE, MN

STORMWATER POLLUTION
PREVENTION PLAN (NORTH)

KOCH FARM SANCTUARY

N

6-3-22

Feet
0 60 120

I hereby certify that this plan, specification, or report was prepared by
me or under my direct supervision and that I am a duly Licensed
Professional Engineer under the laws of the State of Minnesota.

Paul E.  Otto
License # 40062                    Date:



WILLIAM          
   WAY

1

2

3

3

4

OUTLOT  C

32

1

1

8

O
U

TL
O

T 
B

5

4

5

6

7

6

OUTLOT  D

SHEET NO.          OF         SHEETS

REV. NO.     DATE          BY                          DESCRIPTION DESIGNED    DRAWN

CHECKED
DATE:

PROJECT NO:

Engineers & Land Surveyors, Inc.
SSOCIATES

9 West Division Street
Buffalo, MN 55313
(763)682-4727
Fax: (763)682-3522

www.ottoassociates.com

2010

18-0199
TOM KOCH

INDEPENDENCE, MN

KOCH FARM SANCTUARY

N

STORMWATER POLLUTION
PREVENTION PLAN (EAST CENTRAL)

6-3-22

Feet
0 60 120

I hereby certify that this plan, specification, or report was prepared by
me or under my direct supervision and that I am a duly Licensed
Professional Engineer under the laws of the State of Minnesota.

Paul E.  Otto
License # 40062                    Date:



WILLIAM          
   WAY

1

2

3

1

2

3

2

1

32

1
8

4

1

7

9

11

OUTLOT  C

OUTLOT  D

OUTLOT  D

SHEET NO.          OF         SHEETS

REV. NO.     DATE          BY                          DESCRIPTION DESIGNED    DRAWN

CHECKED
DATE:

PROJECT NO:

Engineers & Land Surveyors, Inc.
SSOCIATES

9 West Division Street
Buffalo, MN 55313
(763)682-4727
Fax: (763)682-3522

www.ottoassociates.com

2011

18-0199
TOM KOCH

INDEPENDENCE, MN

KOCH FARM SANCTUARY

N

STORMWATER POLLUTION
PREVENTION PLAN (WEST CENTRAL)

10

6-3-22

Feet
0 60 120

I hereby certify that this plan, specification, or report was prepared by
me or under my direct supervision and that I am a duly Licensed
Professional Engineer under the laws of the State of Minnesota.

Paul E.  Otto
License # 40062                    Date:



W
IL

LI
AM

   
   

   
W

AY

2

3

4

3

2

10

OUTLOT  D

4

5

9

OUTLOT  E

SHEET NO.          OF         SHEETS

REV. NO.     DATE          BY                          DESCRIPTION DESIGNED    DRAWN

CHECKED
DATE:

PROJECT NO:

Engineers & Land Surveyors, Inc.
SSOCIATES

9 West Division Street
Buffalo, MN 55313
(763)682-4727
Fax: (763)682-3522

www.ottoassociates.com

2012

18-0199
TOM KOCH

INDEPENDENCE, MN

KOCH FARM SANCTUARY

N

STORMWATER POLLUTION
PREVENTION PLAN (SOUTH)

6-3-22

Feet
0 60 120

I hereby certify that this plan, specification, or report was prepared by
me or under my direct supervision and that I am a duly Licensed
Professional Engineer under the laws of the State of Minnesota.

Paul E.  Otto
License # 40062                    Date:



KOCHS CROSSING

1

2

OUTLOT A

3

5

4

1

2

2

1

1 12
1

3

KOCHS          CROSSING

W
IL

LI
AM

   
   

 W
AY

OUTLOT A

OUTLOT  C O
U

TL
O

T 
 B

C
O

U
N

TY
   

R
O

AD
   

N
O

.  
 9

0

O
U

TL
O

T 
B

SHEET NO.          OF         SHEETS

REV. NO.     DATE          BY                          DESCRIPTION DESIGNED    DRAWN

CHECKED
DATE:

PROJECT NO:

Engineers & Land Surveyors, Inc.
SSOCIATES

9 West Division Street
Buffalo, MN 55313
(763)682-4727
Fax: (763)682-3522

www.ottoassociates.com

2013 6-3-22

18-0199
TOM KOCH

INDEPENDENCE, MN

STREET & STORM SEWER PLAN
KOCHS CROSSING

KOCH FARM SANCTUARY

N

Feet
0 50 100

SEE SHEET 16

I hereby certify that this plan, specification, or report was prepared by
me or under my direct supervision and that I am a duly Licensed
Professional Engineer under the laws of the State of Minnesota.

Paul E.  Otto
License # 40062                    Date:



WILLIAM WAY
STA 0+00 TO STA 12+00BITUMINOUS TRAIL DETAIL

2

3

23

4

3

2

1

1

4

5

9

O
U

TLO
T  E

10

WILLIAM              WAY

O
U

TLO
T  D

O
U

TLO
T  D

11

SHEET NO.          OF         SHEETS

REV. NO.     DATE          BY                          DESCRIPTION DESIGNED    DRAWN

CHECKED
DATE:

PROJECT NO:

Engineers & Land Surveyors, Inc.
SSOCIATES

9 West Division Street
Buffalo, MN 55313
(763)682-4727
Fax: (763)682-3522

www.ottoassociates.com

2014 6-3-22

18-0199
TOM KOCH

INDEPENDENCE, MN

STREET & STORM SEWER PLAN
WILLIAM WAY

(STA 0+00 TO STA 12+00)
KOCH FARM SANCTUARY

N

Feet
0 50 100

I hereby certify that this plan, specification, or report was prepared by
me or under my direct supervision and that I am a duly Licensed
Professional Engineer under the laws of the State of Minnesota.

Paul E.  Otto
License # 40062                    Date:



 WILLIAM WAY
STA 12+00 TO STA 27+00

1

2

3

1 2 3

O
U

TL
O

T 
 C

3
21 8

OUTLOT  D

4
7

O
U

TL
O

T 
 C

WILLIAM                   WAY

OUTLOT  D

O
U

TL
O

T 
 C

11

SHEET NO.          OF         SHEETS

REV. NO.     DATE          BY                          DESCRIPTION DESIGNED    DRAWN

CHECKED
DATE:

PROJECT NO:

Engineers & Land Surveyors, Inc.
SSOCIATES

9 West Division Street
Buffalo, MN 55313
(763)682-4727
Fax: (763)682-3522

www.ottoassociates.com

2015

18-0199
TOM KOCH

INDEPENDENCE, MN

KOCH FARM SANCTUARY

N

STREET & STORM SEWER PLAN
WILLIAM WAY

(STA 12+00 TO STA 27+00)

Feet
0 50 100

6-3-22

I hereby certify that this plan, specification, or report was prepared by
me or under my direct supervision and that I am a duly Licensed
Professional Engineer under the laws of the State of Minnesota.

Paul E.  Otto
License # 40062                    Date:



  WILLIAM WAY
STA 27+00 TO STA 39+65

1

2

3

4

OUTLOT  C

1

OUTLOT  B
5

5

6

6

OUTLOT B

OUTLOT  C

KO
C

H
S          C

R
O

SSIN
G

WILLIAM               
               

  WAY
OUTLOT  D

O
U

TLO
T  D

1
3

SHEET NO.          OF         SHEETS

REV. NO.     DATE          BY                          DESCRIPTION DESIGNED    DRAWN

CHECKED
DATE:

PROJECT NO:

Engineers & Land Surveyors, Inc.
SSOCIATES

9 West Division Street
Buffalo, MN 55313
(763)682-4727
Fax: (763)682-3522

www.ottoassociates.com

2016

18-0199
TOM KOCH

INDEPENDENCE, MN

KOCH FARM SANCTUARY STREET & STORM SEWER PLAN
WILLIAM WAY

(STA 27+00 TO STA 39+65)

N
Feet

0 50 100

SEE SHEET 13

6-3-22

I hereby certify that this plan, specification, or report was prepared by
me or under my direct supervision and that I am a duly Licensed
Professional Engineer under the laws of the State of Minnesota.

Paul E.  Otto
License # 40062                    Date:



KO
CH'S  CRO

SSING

WILLIAM   WAY

W
ILLIAM

          W
AY

1

2

3234

1
2

3

1234
O

U
TLO

T  C

O
U

TLO
T A

3

2 1

3
2

1

1

8

11

3

OUTLOT  B

O
U

TLO
T  D

5

4

4

5

1

2

2

1 1

1

6

7

4

1

2

6

5

1

9

3

OUTLOT  E

10

KOCH FARM SANCTUARY
TOM KOCH

INDEPENDENCE, MN

Feet
0 200 400

SHEET NO.          OF         SHEETS

REV. NO.     DATE          BY                          DESCRIPTION DESIGNED    DRAWN

CHECKED
DATE:

PROJECT NO:

Engineers & Land Surveyors, Inc.
SSOCIATES

9 West Division Street
Buffalo, MN 55313
(763)682-4727
Fax: (763)682-3522

www.ottoassociates.com

6-3-22

WETLAND BUFFER & TREE
PRESERVATION PLAN 18-0199

17 20

N

I hereby certify that this plan, specification, or report was prepared by
me or under my direct supervision and that I am a duly Licensed
Professional Engineer under the laws of the State of Minnesota.

Paul E.  Otto
License # 40062                    Date:



SHEET NO.          OF         SHEETS

REV. NO.     DATE          BY                          DESCRIPTION DESIGNED    DRAWN

CHECKED
DATE:

PROJECT NO:

Engineers & Land Surveyors, Inc.
SSOCIATES

9 West Division Street
Buffalo, MN 55313
(763)682-4727
Fax: (763)682-3522

www.ottoassociates.com

2018

18-0199
TOM KOCH

INDEPENDENCE, MN

DETAILSKOCH FARM SANCTUARY
6-3-22

FLOW

I hereby certify that this plan, specification, or report was prepared by
me or under my direct supervision and that I am a duly Licensed
Professional Engineer under the laws of the State of Minnesota.

Paul E.  Otto
License # 40062                    Date:



OUTLET CONTROL
STRUCTURE  

(POND #1)

OUTLET CONTROL
STRUCTURE  

(POND #2)

OUTLET CONTROL
STRUCTURE  

(POND #6)

OUTLET CONTROL
STRUCTURE  

(POND #5)

OUTLET CONTROL
STRUCTURE  

(POND #7)
OUTLET CONTROL

STRUCTURE  
(POND #9)

OUTLET CONTROL
STRUCTURE  

(POND #8)

SHEET NO.          OF         SHEETS

REV. NO.     DATE          BY                          DESCRIPTION DESIGNED    DRAWN

CHECKED
DATE:

PROJECT NO:

Engineers & Land Surveyors, Inc.
SSOCIATES

9 West Division Street
Buffalo, MN 55313
(763)682-4727
Fax: (763)682-3522

www.ottoassociates.com

2019

18-0199
TOM KOCH

INDEPENDENCE, MN

DETAILSKOCH FARM SANCTUARY
6-3-22

I hereby certify that this plan, specification, or report was prepared by
me or under my direct supervision and that I am a duly Licensed
Professional Engineer under the laws of the State of Minnesota.

Paul E.  Otto
License # 40062                    Date:



                   GRAVEL DRIVEWAY SECTION

TYPICAL ROAD SECTION

SHEET NO.          OF         SHEETS

REV. NO.     DATE          BY                          DESCRIPTION DESIGNED    DRAWN

CHECKED
DATE:

PROJECT NO:

Engineers & Land Surveyors, Inc.
SSOCIATES

9 West Division Street
Buffalo, MN 55313
(763)682-4727
Fax: (763)682-3522

www.ottoassociates.com

2020

18-0199
TOM KOCH

INDEPENDENCE, MN

DETAILSKOCH FARM SANCTUARY

TYPICAL FULL BASEMENT
W/LOOKOUT WINDOWS (L/OUT)

TYPICAL FULL WALKOUT (WO)

6-3-22

I hereby certify that this plan, specification, or report was prepared by
me or under my direct supervision and that I am a duly Licensed
Professional Engineer under the laws of the State of Minnesota.

Paul E.  Otto
License # 40062                    Date:



LAKE INDEPENDENCE

EAST SARAH

SHEET NO.          OF         SHEETS

REV. NO.     DATE          BY                          DESCRIPTION DESIGNED    DRAWN

CHECKED
DATE:

PROJECT NO:

Engineers & Land Surveyors, Inc.
SSOCIATES

9 West Division Street
Buffalo, MN 55313
(763)682-4727
Fax: (763)682-3522

www.ottoassociates.com

81 6-3-22

18-0199
TOM KOCH

INDEPENDENCE, MN

COVER SHEETKOCH FARM SANCTUARY

N

HENNEPIN COUNTY
CITY OF INDEPENDENCE

COUNTY ROAD NO. 90 TURN LANE PLAN

I hereby certify that this plan, specification, or report was prepared by
me or under my direct supervision and that I am a duly Licensed
Professional Engineer under the laws of the State of Minnesota.

Paul E.  Otto
License # 40062                    Date:



SHEET NO.          OF         SHEETS

REV. NO.     DATE          BY                          DESCRIPTION DESIGNED    DRAWN

CHECKED
DATE:

PROJECT NO:

Engineers & Land Surveyors, Inc.
SSOCIATES

9 West Division Street
Buffalo, MN 55313
(763)682-4727
Fax: (763)682-3522

www.ottoassociates.com

82 6-3-22

18-0199
TOM KOCH

INDEPENDENCE, MN

TYPICAL SECTION &
CONSTRUCTION NOTES

KOCH FARM SANCTUARY

PROPOSED TYPICAL ROAD SECTION
COUNTY ROAD NO. 90

I hereby certify that this plan, specification, or report was prepared by
me or under my direct supervision and that I am a duly Licensed
Professional Engineer under the laws of the State of Minnesota.

Paul E.  Otto
License # 40062                    Date:



1

KO
C

H
'S

 C
R

O
SS

IN
G

COUNTY    ROAD    NO.    90

1 1

4

SHEET NO.          OF         SHEETS

REV. NO.     DATE          BY                          DESCRIPTION DESIGNED    DRAWN

CHECKED
DATE:

PROJECT NO:

Engineers & Land Surveyors, Inc.
SSOCIATES

9 West Division Street
Buffalo, MN 55313
(763)682-4727
Fax: (763)682-3522

www.ottoassociates.com

83 6-3-22

18-0199
TOM KOCH

INDEPENDENCE, MN

REMOVAL, EROSION CONTROL, &
TURF ESTABLISHMENT PLAN

COUNTY ROAD NO. 90
KOCH FARM SANCTUARY

N

Feet
0 20 40

I hereby certify that this plan, specification, or report was prepared by
me or under my direct supervision and that I am a duly Licensed
Professional Engineer under the laws of the State of Minnesota.

Paul E.  Otto
License # 40062                    Date:



1 1

4
1

KO
C

H
'S

 C
R

O
SS

IN
G

COUNTY    ROAD    NO.    90

O
U

TLO
T  C SHEET NO.          OF         SHEETS

REV. NO.     DATE          BY                          DESCRIPTION DESIGNED    DRAWN

CHECKED
DATE:

PROJECT NO:

Engineers & Land Surveyors, Inc.
SSOCIATES

9 West Division Street
Buffalo, MN 55313
(763)682-4727
Fax: (763)682-3522

www.ottoassociates.com

84 6-3-22

18-0199
TOM KOCH

INDEPENDENCE, MN

TURN LANE - GRADING PLANKOCH FARM SANCTUARY

N

Feet
0 20 40

I hereby certify that this plan, specification, or report was prepared by
me or under my direct supervision and that I am a duly Licensed
Professional Engineer under the laws of the State of Minnesota.

Paul E.  Otto
License # 40062                    Date:



COUNTY ROAD NO. 90

1 1

KO
C

H
'S

 C
R

O
SS

IN
G

COUNTY    ROAD    NO.    90

RIGHT  LANE
MUST

TURN  RIGHT

SHEET NO.          OF         SHEETS

REV. NO.     DATE          BY                          DESCRIPTION DESIGNED    DRAWN

CHECKED
DATE:

PROJECT NO:

Engineers & Land Surveyors, Inc.
SSOCIATES

9 West Division Street
Buffalo, MN 55313
(763)682-4727
Fax: (763)682-3522

www.ottoassociates.com

85 6-3-22

18-0199
TOM KOCH

INDEPENDENCE, MN

CONSTRUCTION PLAN & PROFILE
COUNTY ROAD NO. 90

KOCH FARM SANCTUARY

N
Feet

0 20 40

I hereby certify that this plan, specification, or report was prepared by
me or under my direct supervision and that I am a duly Licensed
Professional Engineer under the laws of the State of Minnesota.

Paul E.  Otto
License # 40062                    Date:



0+00.00

0+25.00

0+50.00

0+75.00

1+00.00

1+25.00

1+50.00

1+75.00

SHEET NO.          OF         SHEETS

REV. NO.     DATE          BY                          DESCRIPTION DESIGNED    DRAWN

CHECKED
DATE:

PROJECT NO:

Engineers & Land Surveyors, Inc.
SSOCIATES

9 West Division Street
Buffalo, MN 55313
(763)682-4727
Fax: (763)682-3522

www.ottoassociates.com

86 6-3-22

18-0199
TOM KOCH

INDEPENDENCE, MN

CROSS SECTIONSKOCH FARM SANCTUARY
I hereby certify that this plan, specification, or report was prepared by
me or under my direct supervision and that I am a duly Licensed
Professional Engineer under the laws of the State of Minnesota.

Paul E.  Otto
License # 40062                    Date:



2+51.83

2+00.00

2+25.00

2+50.00

2+75.00

3+00.00

3+25.00

3+50.00

SHEET NO.          OF         SHEETS

REV. NO.     DATE          BY                          DESCRIPTION DESIGNED    DRAWN

CHECKED
DATE:

PROJECT NO:

Engineers & Land Surveyors, Inc.
SSOCIATES

9 West Division Street
Buffalo, MN 55313
(763)682-4727
Fax: (763)682-3522

www.ottoassociates.com

87 6-3-22

18-0199
TOM KOCH

INDEPENDENCE, MN

CROSS SECTIONSKOCH FARM SANCTUARY
I hereby certify that this plan, specification, or report was prepared by
me or under my direct supervision and that I am a duly Licensed
Professional Engineer under the laws of the State of Minnesota.

Paul E.  Otto
License # 40062                    Date:



3+75.00

4+00.00

4+25.00

4+50.00

4+75.00

5+00.00

5+25.00

SHEET NO.          OF         SHEETS

REV. NO.     DATE          BY                          DESCRIPTION DESIGNED    DRAWN

CHECKED
DATE:

PROJECT NO:

Engineers & Land Surveyors, Inc.
SSOCIATES

9 West Division Street
Buffalo, MN 55313
(763)682-4727
Fax: (763)682-3522

www.ottoassociates.com

88 6-3-22

18-0199
TOM KOCH

INDEPENDENCE, MN

CROSS SECTIONSKOCH FARM SANCTUARY
I hereby certify that this plan, specification, or report was prepared by
me or under my direct supervision and that I am a duly Licensed
Professional Engineer under the laws of the State of Minnesota.

Paul E.  Otto
License # 40062                    Date:



























Wetland Buffer Planting and Maintenance Plan 

Koch Farm Sanctuary - Page 1 of 2 

 

Disturbed Upland Buffer Areas 

Planting and Maintenance Plan  

Koch Farm Sanctuary, Independence, MN 
 
 

The Koch Farm Sanctuary development shows disturbed upland buffer requiring planting and 

management according to Pioneer-Sarah Creek WMC. The site previously consisted of farm fields 

encroaching on wetlands; therefore, the quality of buffers is anticipated to increase with development of 

the site and subsequent management of buffers. After construction activities have ceased, upland buffer 

that is disturbed during project grading will be seeded with a native seed mix and managed annually for 

weedy and invasive species. Upon final establishment, wetland buffer shall contain little or no bare soil 

and shall exhibit a dominance of native vegetation. Protocols to be followed for site preparation/seeding 

and maintenance are provided below. 

 
 

Disturbed Upland Buffer Planting Plan 
 

Site Preparation & Seeding (assuming fall seeding) 

Soils within the disturbed buffer areas will first be decompacted to a depth of 12 inches and organic 

matter will be incorporated into soils, and then fine graded/smoothed before the seeding work begins (to 

be done by the general contractor or excavator). The areas will be left/avoided for a minimum of 30 days 

to allow weeds to germinate and regrow. 

 

A broad spectrum herbicide treatment will be applied as per manufacturer’s directions. Herbicide 

treatment areas will be left/avoided for a minimum of 30 days before native seeding commences. 

 

The soil will be harrowed or raked to create a smooth seedbed, and a roller or cultipacker will be used to 

create a firm seedbed. All seed will be applied by broadcasting, drilling or as otherwise recommended 

by the contracted revegetation specialist. 

 

The proposed seed mix and rate for disturbed buffer areas is State Seed Mix 35-241 (Mesic Prairie 

General) or similar at a rate of 11.5 lbs/acre of grasses and forbs, and 25.0 lbs/acre of cover crop. 

 

Native seed mix used will depend on the hydrologic conditions of the landscape post grading and 

seed availability. Seed shall be purchased from an approved seed company as listed on the MnDNR’s 

native plant nursery list (or approved equal). 

 

Newly seeded areas will be mulched with clean straw at a rate of 1.5 tons per acres. The straw will be 

disk anchored, where accessible. Upon completion of seed installation, a site visit will be conducted 

with the vegetation contractor to confirm seeding was consistent with the approved plan and collect seed 

tags. 



Wetland Buffer Planting and Maintenance Plan 

Koch Farm Sanctuary - Page 2 of 2 

 

 

Disturbed Upland Buffer Maintenance Plan 
 

A standard maintenance plan for areas of disturbed upland buffer is provided below. Revisions to this 

plan may occur. The intent of the management plan is to: 1) promote the growth of native species, and 

2) control noxious and/or invasive species such as Canada thistle. When a noxious or invasive species 

occurs, the appropriate technique to control or eliminate that species will be implemented. 

 

Year 1 (fall dormant seeding) 

• Fall dormant seed as described in the Planting Plan 

 
Year 2 Management 

• Mow 2-3 times with mower deck 6-8 inches off the ground to prevent development of weedy 

species 

• Spot spray perennial weedy species as needed 

 
Year 2 Evaluation 

• Cover crop will be gone unless winter wheat was used in a fall planting 

• Grasses forming clumps 1-6 inches apart in drill rows, but still short 

• Some flowers should be blooming 

• Flush growth of foxtail and other annuals may indicate need for more frequent mowing 

• Supplemental seeding if needed 

 

Year 3 Management 

• Mow 1-2 times with mower deck/bar approximately 12 inches off the ground to control weedy 

annuals 

• Spot spray perennial weedy species as needed 

• Supplemental seeding if needed 

 

Year 3 Evaluation 

• Plantings should include a diverse mixture of native grasses and forbs 

• Plantings should not include more than 50% invasive species 

 



 Main Office: 
3601 Thurston Avenue, Anoka, MN 55303 

Phone:  763/427-5860 
www.haa-inc.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:  Mark Kaltsas, Independence City Planner/Administrator 
 
CC:  Andrew Budde, City Engineer 
  Shawn Bode, Public Works Supervisor 
 
FROM: Shane Nelson, Water Resources Engineer 
 
DATE: January 3, 2023 
 
RE: Koch Farm – Water Resources Review  
  
 
We have received and reviewed the Construction Plans, dated December 14, 2022, and Stormwater 
Report, dated April 18, 2022, and Koch Farm Sanctuary Creek Crossing report, dated June 3, 2022 for 
Koch Farm prepared by Otto Associates in the City of Independence and the Wetland Delineation 
Report, dated October 21, 2020, prepared by Kjolhaug Environmental Services Company, Inc.  We 
would offer the following comments in regards to water resources: 
 
Koch Farm is a proposed 33 lot, 141.35-acre residential development. The existing site contains a 
mixture of woodland, meadow/wetland and row crops. The site is located 0.6 miles west of Lake 
Independence, and the stormwater discharge from this project is conveyed to Lake Independence via 
natural drainage ways.  Lake Independence is currently listed as an impaired water and has a TMDL 
for nutrients. 
 

1. This project is located in close proximity to Lake Independence, which has an USEPA approved 
TMDL for nutrients.  The Applicant / Contractor will be required to implement additional 
stormwater BMPs and erosion control measures during construction as required by City 
ordinances, watershed rules, and state permitting requirement. 

2. Stormwater is proposed to be managed by the construction of 9 wet sedimentation (NURP) 
basins located within drainage and utility easements.  Additionally, the Applicant is proposing 
the creation of Tree Preservation Areas, Grassland Conservation Buffers, and additional 
Wetland Buffers which will have an environmental and water quality benefit.     

3. Stormwater runoff calculations have been provided and the proposed stormwater BMPs result 
in proposed runoff rates which are the same or lower than existing, as required by City code.   

4. The Applicant has provided soil logs, which generally extend to depths of 14 inches to 24 inches 
below the surface.  Due to the proximity of mottled soil/groundwater, infiltration was not 
feasible.   

5. Water Quality calculations have been provided for this project.  The Total Phosphorous (TP) 
will be reduced from 54.16 lb/yr in the pre-development condition to 39.61 lb/yr in the post 
development condition.  The Total Suspended Solids (TSS) will be reduced from 13,887 lb/yr 
in the pre-development condition to 6,111 lb/yr in the post development condition.  The 
removals for TP and TSS meet City ordinances.   

6. The Wetland Delineation Report has recently been received and a Notice of Decision was issued 
on December 9, 2021 for the wetland boundary and type. 



Koch Farm – Water Resources Review 
Page 2 

   

7. A Wetland Replacement plan will be required for the wetland impacts that are proposed. The 
Applicant shall submit a Wetland Replacement Plan for review and approval. 

8. Buffer strips will need to be established as part of this project. A Disturbed Upland Buffer Areas 
Planting and Maintenance Plan has been provided and has been found to be acceptable.   

9. The proposed buffer monument locations as proposed have been reviewed and have been found 
to be acceptable.   

10. This project will require a watershed permit from Pioneer-Sarah Creek Watershed Management 
Commission.  

11. The project will require a NPDES permit (General Permit MNR100001) from the Minnesota 
Pollution Control Agency (MPCA). 

 
We recommend approval of the Final Plat contingent upon approval of a Wetland Replacement Plan. 
 
 
 
 



 

H:\INDEPEND_CI_MN\0C1126747\1_Corres\C_To Others\Koch Farm Sac_PrePlatReview_2023-01-03.docx 

 

January 3, 2023 
 
City of Independence 
Attn: Mark Kaltsas 
1920 County Road 90 
Independence, MN 55359 
 
RE: Final Plat Application 
 Koch Family Sanctuary 
 Engineering Review #1 
 
Dear Mr. Kaltsas: 
 
As requested, we have completed an engineering review of the documents submitted on December 15, 
2022 for the above referenced project.  The review is based on documents dated 12/14/2022 and 
prepared by Otto Associates.   Following are my comments for your consideration: 
 
General: 

1. Existing Kochs Xings may have existing private utilities withing the right of way.  The right of 
way vacation process may allow these utilities to remain and easements to be designated.  
Has coordination happened to understand if all utilities will be required to relocate, and that 
no easement will remain for these facilities?  

2. Lot 3 Block 4 has the house pad located in the rear of the property and only about a 15-foot 
width between the D&UE line and wetland buffer line.  It is anticipated that grading for this 
future driveway may be cause future wetland buffer impacts and should be 
addressed/accounted for as part of the final plat.   

3. Lot 4, Block 9 has the house pad located in the rear of the property and does not provide an 
adequate driveway location between the D&UE line and the drain field.  Drain field orientation 
could possibly by adjusted to accommodate the driveway.   

4. In the NW corner of Lot 1, Block 1 there appears to be a field approach to CR 90.  Based on 
aerial photos is appears to actively allows access to both the development land and the land 
to the north.  If access is to be maintained to the parcel to the north an ingress/egress 
easement should be provided across a portion of the lot or the field approach removed or 
relocated to the north.     

5. In many areas the proposed Conservation Easement slightly extends over or stops short of lot 
lines.  It is recommended to try to have the Conservation Easements and associated signage to 
follow lot lines to help minimize future encroachment/land disputes with property owners 
and the city.  Potentially extend the Conservation Easements to: 

a. Lot 2, Block 2 side yard 
b. Lot 1, Block 4 rear 
c. Lot 3, Block 4 side yard near Kocks Crossing 
d. Lot 1-6, Block 5 rear 
e. Lot 4, Block 7 rear 



Final Plat Application  
Koch Farm Sanctuary 
Page 2  
 

H:\INDEPEND_CI_MN\0C1126747\1_Corres\C_To Others\Koch Farm Sac_PrePlatReview_2023-01-03.docx 

 

f. Lot 1, Block 11, rear yard 
 
 Potentially reduce encroachments into lots at: 

g. Lot 1, Block 9 rear 
h. Lot 1-3, Block 8 side & rear 
i. Lot 4 & 5, Block 9 rear 

 
6. D&UE for storm sewer between Lot 4 Block 7 and Lot 6, Block 5 should extent to adjacent 

property lines and be a minimum of 25 feet wide.   
7. EOF is provided in the rear of Lot 6 Block 5.  Provide D&UE over swaleStreet profile from Sta 

26+00-30+00 is at 6.75%.  City ordinance 500.45 Subd. 3 requires minimum street grades for 
Minor Streets to be 6%.   

8. Lot 1, Block does not list a minimum LO elevation.   
9. The ROW stub provided near Sta 10+00 of Williams Way should be rough graded to an 

approximate roadway profile to the western property line.  This will help ensure future 
encroachment agreements are not needed from adjacent property owners and that there is a 
clear expectation that a roadway could be extended through this area in the future.   

10. A rock construction entrance is shown at the east connection with Kochs Crossing.  All 
construction equipment and access to the site should occur from CR 90 to minimize hauling 
and complaints from existing residential properties.  A rock construction access may be added 
to the existing Kochs Crossing connection that would likely get utilized during the earlier 
stages of construction.   

11. Add black on yellow “No Outlet” to Williams Way roadway signage.  
12. Bituminous trail at end of Williams Way exceeds 5% grade and is not ADA compliant.  Provide 

a design that meets ADA requirements ideally with a max grade of 5% or less and ADA 
compliant pedestrian ramps.   

13. All applicable city standard details and specifications should be followed for the final 
construction plans.  

14. The following permits will need to be obtained and copies provided to the City conditional to 
City approval: 

a. NPDES Permit for Stormwater Discharge 
b. PSCWMC Permit 
c. Wetland Conservation Act (WCA) Permit (MCWD and HAA are listed as the LGU)  

15. The applicant will be required to submit a Maintenance Agreement for all stormwater 
management structures and facilities.  The agreement must define maintenance 
responsibilities following completion of project, specify types and frequencies of inspection 
and maintenance activities, designate who will conduct inspection and maintenance activities, 
and outline reporting requirements.   

16. .   
 

 
Grading/Drainage: 

17. Within vacated easement of Kochs Xing there is a culvert on Lot 3, Block 4.  It is recommended 
to remove this culvert and grade to allow the north area to drain to the south via a ditch as 
part of the development grading.  If left in place the culvert would become private and the city 
would not maintain it.   



Final Plat Application  
Koch Farm Sanctuary 
Page 3  
 

H:\INDEPEND_CI_MN\0C1126747\1_Corres\C_To Others\Koch Farm Sac_PrePlatReview_2023-01-03.docx 

 

18. Outlot A: 100yr-HWL of both basins appear to encroach into adjacent lots.  D&UE should be 
adjusted in these parcels to extend over the 100yr-HWL.  Also, a D&UE should be extended 
over all of Outlot A.   

19. The berm in Outlot B appears to fill a portion of a natural low area that may take away some 
of the existing stormwater storage and negatively impact the existing property owner to the 
east.  Has this basin been modeled for impacts?  

20. Outlot C has a basin with a HWL=974.0.  The 974.0 elevation extends well into Lots 2-5, Block 
5.  D&UE should be extended to cover the 100yr-HWL.  Conformation should be provided if 
septic drain fields can be in this easement.   

21. At the eastern connection with Kock’s Crossing it appears that ditch water is conveyed from 
the existing ditches into the proposed ditches.   

22. Lots 1-2, Block 7 are labeled to have Min Low Floor elev of 983.7.  Pioneer-Sarah Creek 
Watershed require 2 feet of freeboard and should be adjusted to 983.8 based on the adjacent 
storm pond 100-yr HWL.   

 
 
 
If you have any questions or comments, please contact me to discuss. 
 
Sincerely, 

Bolton & Menk, Inc. 

 

Andrew Budde, P.E. 
Independence City Engineer 
 

 



2171 Copeland Road and 2052 Nelson Road. – Minor Subdivision	 01.17.2023
	 	
	 Page	1	
 

City of Independence 
Request for a Minor Subdivision to Allow a Lot Line Rearrangement  

Involving the Properties located at 2171 Copeland Road and 2052 Nelson Road 
 

To: Planning Commission 

From: Mark Kaltsas, City Planner 

Meeting Date: January 17, 2023 

Applicants: Chad Greenway 

Owners: Chad Greenway 

Location: 2171 Copeland Road and 2052 Nelson Road 

 
Request: 
Chad Greenway (Applicant/Owner) requests that the City consider the following action for the 
properties located at 2171 Copeland Rd. and 2052 Nelson Rd., Independence, MN (PID No. 19-
118-24-14-0001 and 19-118-24-13-0003): 

  
a. A minor subdivision to permit a lot line rearrangement to adjust the property lines 

between the two subject properties.   
 
 

Property/Site Information: 
There are two subject properties being considered. The applicant owns both properties and has 
an existing home on the north property and recently located a detached accessory structure on the 
south property.  The north property has frontage on Copeland Road and the south property has 
frontage on both Copeland Road and Nelson Road. The property has the following site 
characteristics:    
 

Property Information: 2171 Copeland Road and 2052 Nelson Road 
 Zoning: Agriculture 
 Comprehensive Plan: Agriculture 
 Acreage (Before):  PID No. 19-118-24-14-0001  2 acres 
      PID No. 19-118-24-13-0003  3.4 acres 
 

Acreage (After):       5.4 acres 
 
 



2171 Copeland Road and 2052 Nelson Road. – Minor Subdivision	 01.17.2023
	 	
	 Page	2	
 

2171 Copeland Rd. and 2052 Nelson Rd. 

 
 
Discussion: 
The applicant acquired a detached accessory structure (~22’ x 35’) and located on the south 
property which is defined as Parcel A (no principal structure).  The applicant inquired whether or 
not a building permit was required for the accessory structure.  The City reviewed the structure 
and noted that the structure would require a zoning permit and would have to be located on the 
same property as the principal structure (identified as Parcel B).  The applicant asked if they 
could adjust the property line between their two properties.  It was noted that lot line 
rearrangements are permitted in the AG-Agriculture zoning district.  The applicant is now 
seeking consideration of a lot line rearrangement to expand the boundaries of Parcel B and 
reduce the boundaries of Parcel A.   
 



2171 Copeland Road and 2052 Nelson Road. – Minor Subdivision	 01.17.2023
	 	
	 Page	3	
 

The applicant is proposing to add 2.88 acres from Parcel A to Parcel B in the after condition.  
Parcel A will be reduced from 60.84 to 57.96 acres and Parcel B would be increased from 10.00 
to 12.88 acres. 
 
There are several items that should be noted by the City during consideration of the application: 
 

1. The City does not have accessory structure square footage limitations for properties that 
are greater than 10 acres.  
 

2. Parcel A in the after condition would still have a single building eligibility.   
 

3. The proposed (existing) detached accessory building meets applicable building setbacks 
in the after condition.   

 
4. The existing perimeter drainage and utility easements should be vacated and the requisite 

perimeter easements relating to the revised lot boundaries will need to be dedicated to the 
City.  The applicant shall execute the necessary documents to convey the easements as 
determined necessary by the City. 

 
The proposed subdivision to allow a lot line rearrangement appears to meet all applicable 
standards of the City’s zoning and subdivision ordinance.  The revised lots will continue to be 
consistent with the City’s zoning ordinances and Comprehensive Plan. 
 
 
Neighbor Comments: 
The City has not received any written comments regarding the proposed minor subdivision. 
 
 
Recommendation: 
Staff is seeking a recommendation from the Planning Commission for the requested minor subdivision 
with the following findings: 
 

1. The proposed subdivision allowing a lot line rearrangement meets all applicable criteria 
and conditions stated in Chapter V, Section 500, Planning and Land Use Regulations of 
the City of Independence Zoning Ordinance. 
   

2. The applicant shall dedicate the requisite drainage and utility easements to the City.  The 
applicant shall execute the necessary documents to convey the easements as determined 
necessary by the City.  It is recommended that the applicant request vacation of the 
existing perimeter drainage and utility easements. 
 

3. The applicant shall pay for all costs associated with the City’s review of the requested 
minor subdivision. 



2171 Copeland Road and 2052 Nelson Road. – Minor Subdivision	 01.17.2023
	 	
	 Page	4	
 

 
4. The applicant shall record the subdivision and City Council Resolution with Hennepin 

County within six (6) months of approval.  
 
5. The applicant shall execute and record the requisite drainage and utility easements with 

Hennepin County within six (6) months of approval.  
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Application 
2. Exhibits Depicting Before and After Conditions 
3. Pictures of Existing Detached Accessory Structure 

 



Applicant Information Owner Information

Name: Chad Greenway

Address: 2171 Copeland Rd. 
Independence, Minnesota 
55359

Primary Phone: 6128044063

Email: cgreenway18@gmail.com

Name: Chad Greenway

Address: 2171 Copeland Rd. 
Independence, Minnesota 
55359

Primary Phone: 6128044063

Email: cgreenway18@gmail.com

Property Address: 2171 Copeland Rd

PID: 19-118-24-14-0001

Planning Application Type: Subdivision

Subdivision Type: Lot Line Rearrangement, Rural View Lot, Minor Subdivision (3 lots or less) 

Description:I am applying for a minor subdivision to permit a lot line rearrangement on my 

property at 2171 Copeland Rd. 

Supporting Documents: Site Survey (Existing Conditions), Site Survey (Proposed Conditions) 

Signature:









9285 Highway 12 – Concept Plan Review Page 1 

 

City of Independence 

  Review of a Proposed Business Park on the  
Propety Located at 9285 Highway 12  

 
To: Planning Commission   

From: Mark Kaltsas, City Planner 

Meeting Date: January 17, 2023 

Applicant: William Stoddard 

Owner: J F Zeglin Jr & M D Zeglin 

Location: 9285 Highway 12 

 

Request: 
William Stoddard (Applicant) and J F Zeglin Jr & M D Zeglin (Owner) requests that the City 
consider the following actions for the property located at 9285 US Hwy 12, Independence, MN 
(PID No. 18-118-24-21-0001): 

  
a. A comprehensive plan amendment to allow a portion of the property to be re-guided 

to the Urban Commercial - UC zoning district.  A portion of the property is already 
guided Urban Commercial. 
 

b. Rezoning of a portion of the property from AG-Agriculture to UC-Urban 
Commercial. 

 
c. Conditional Use Permit to allow a planned unit commercial development on the 

subject property. The proposed development would include office warehouse and 
private garage condominium buildings.   

 
d. Site Plan Review to allow the proposed development.  
 
e. Preliminary Plat to allow the subdivision of the property into eight (8) residential lots 

and associated lots to allow the proposed commercial development. 
  
 
Property/Site Information: 
The property is located on the south side of Highway 12 and west side of Nelson Rd.  The 
property has frontage on both roads and is comprised primarily of agriculture land, woodlands 



9285 Highway 12 – Concept Plan Review Page 2 

 

and wetlands.  There is an existing home and several detached accessory structures on the subject 
property. 

 
Property Information: 9285 Highway 12 

 Zoning: Agriculture 
 Comprehensive Plan: Agriculture/Urban Commercial 

Acreage: ~58 acres  
  

9285 Highway 12 

 
 



9285 Highway 12 – Concept Plan Review Page 3 

 

Discussion: 
The City reviewed a concept site plan in 2022 for this property and provided feedback to the 
applicant and staff.  The applicant considered the feedback and direction and has now made a 
formal application to develop the subject property.  The applicant has revised the proposed 
development to include eight (8) single-family lots along Nelson Road, 120-130 lifestyle auto 
condominiums and 10,600 SF of commercial/retail space.  The proposed lifestyle auto 
condominiums would be developed to allow for vehicle storage and would include amenities 
associated with this type of product (i.e., loft, bathroom, etc.).  The applicant and City would 
work to establish regulations to prohibit overnight stays and limit and define any larger events 
(i.e., auto show) that could occur on the property.  It is acknowledged that the proposed lifestyle 
auto condominiums would produce less traffic, require fewer public resources, and provide more 
market valuation than the initial commercial/warehouse development.  The facility would be 
secured, professionally managed, and generally concealed from Highway 12 and Nelson Road.   
 
Approximately 10,600 SF of commercial retail is proposed by the applicant.  This area would 
have Highway 12 frontage and visibility consistent with the City’s Comprehensive Plan.  The 
City has reviewed the initial site plan layout and is generally in agreement with the proposed 
layout.  The City would require a more detailed site plan specifically for the proposed Lot 9 
development.  The plan will need to provide more detail relating to allowed and proposed uses, 
parking and drive aisle dimensions, landscaping and lighting.  In addition, the City will want to 
consider how/if the site could or would accommodate retail sales such as a drive thru and 
restaurant.  A more detailed parking analysis would need to be completed  
 
In order for the City to consider approval of the proposed plan, the following approvals and steps 
would be required: 
 

1. Amend the Comprehensive Plan.   
a. This would re-guide a portion of the property (~16 acres) from AG-

Agriculture to Urban Commercial. 
2. Rezone that portion of the property indicated from AG-Agriculture to Urban 

Commercial. 
3. Consider Site Plan Review. 
4. Consider a Conditional Use Permit to allow a planned unit commercial development 

on the subject property. 
5. Consider Preliminary Plat approval. 
6. Consider Final Plat approval. 

 
The following land uses are proposed by the applicant (plans attached):  
 

• Commercial office/retail (10,600 SF on ~ 1.87 acres) 
• Lifestyle auto condominiums (102 units on ~ 11.65 acres) 
• Eight (8) Residential Lots (approximately 4.5 acres each) 

 
There are several key points of information that should be noted relating to the proposed 
development: 



9285 Highway 12 – Concept Plan Review Page 4 

 

• The entire property is currently zoned AG-Agriculture.   
 

• A portion of the property, approximately 12 acres on the west side is guided by the City’s 
Comprehensive Land Use Plan for Urban Commercial. 
 

• The applicant is asking the City to consider rezoning a larger portion of the property from 
AG-Agriculture to Urban Commercial (~16 acres). 

 

 
 
 

CURRENTLY 
GUIDED UC – 
URBAN 
COMMERCIAL 

PROPOSED 
TO BE 
REGUIDED TO 
UC – URBAN 
COMMERCIAL 

REMAIN AS AG-AGRICULTURE 



9285 Highway 12 – Concept Plan Review Page 5 

 

• The remainder of the property (~28 acres) would remain as AG-Agriculture. 
 

• In order for the property to be rezoned, the City would first need to approve a 
Comprehensive Plan Amendment.  A comprehensive plan amendment process would be 
subject to approval by the Metropolitan Council. 

 
• COMPREHENSIVE PLAN MAP (CLIP OF TOTAL MAP) 

 
 

 
• The initial submittal considered access to Nelson Road and the applicant was notified that 

the City would not support any commercial access to Nelson Road.  The plans submitted 
include a right in/right out only onto Highway 12 with a future frontage road connection 
to the west that could connect to County Line Road (shown on site plan).  MNDOT has 
reviewed the plan and provided formal comments to the City and applicant.  MNDOT has 
commented that they would recommend access to this site be provided via a connection 
to Nelson Road or County Line Road rather than a right in/right out as proposed.  As a 
result of the MNDOT review, access has not been finalized.  The issue of access will 
need to be resolved prior to the City finalizing a decision relating to this application.   
 

• The applicant has provided the City with a traffic study as requested.  The study indicates 
that the proposed development would generate a total of 7 entering and 1 exiting trips 
during the morning traffic peak and 2 entering and 7 exiting during the afternoon traffic 
peak hour.  A total of 68 trips per day would be generated by the proposed auto condos 
and commercial retail uses.  This would equate to approximately 1 trip every 7 minutes 
during peak times and approximately 2 trips per hour throughout the remainder of the day 
(see table below).  It is noted that the proposed right in/right out would allow access to 
the proposed development until such time as a frontage road could be constructed to 



9285 Highway 12 – Concept Plan Review Page 6 

 

connect to County Line Road.  Staff is seeking direction relating to access and the overall 
proposal from the Planning Commission and City Council.   
 

 
 

• Following discussion with Planning and Council, the applicant has revised the plans to 
include eight (8) residential lots along Nelson Rd.  The proposed residential lots mirror 
the lots across Nelson Rd. to the east.  Development of the west side of Nelson into 
residential lots that are similar to those in existence would provide additional buffering of 
the proposed commercial development.  It is noted that the existing residential lots 
directly across and on the east side of Nelson Road from the subject property have 
approximately 200 LF of frontage.  The City’s current ordinance would require 250 LF of 
frontage for all lots greater than 3.49 acres.  This would include Lots 1, 2 & 6-8.  Lots 3-5 
comply with the frontage requirements.  The applicant could revise the plan to reduce the 
acreage of the proposed lots or increase the frontages to meet the specified requirements.  
The applicant is attempting to mirror the lots across the street; however, those lots are all 
less than 3.49 acres in size.   
 

• The City noted in its initial review that the potential wetland impact associated with the 
development of driveways to serve the lots was a concern. The applicant has revised the 
plans to show the extent of the wetland impacts and is now proposing to utilize shared 
driveways for Lots 1&2 and 7 &8.  Utilization of shared driveways would reduce the 
wetland impacts and the number of driveways located along Nelson Road. 
 

• The applicant is proposing to provide on-site sewer (septic) and on-site water to serve the 
proposed development.  The applicant has provided a report indicating how the 
development of on-site water would serve the fire suppression requirements for the 
proposed development.  The City is continuing to evaluate and study the possibility of 
establishing a municipal well/water service in the location of the Urban Commercial to 
serve commercial development on the north and south sides of Highway 12.  Should the 
proposed development move forward, the City will provide additional information 
relating to a municipal well to Council for consideration.   

 
• The applicant has completed a wetland delineation for the property.  The City initially 

provided feedback to the applicant relating to the potential wetland impacts.  The 
applicant is proposing to mitigate the impacted wetlands utilizing the purchase of wetland 
credits.  Approximately 31.36 acres of the subject property is wetlands.  The applicant is 
proposing to impact 2.48 acres of the total wetland area (> 8%).  The potential wetland 



9285 Highway 12 – Concept Plan Review Page 7 

 

impacts would need to be reviewed and approved by the City.  Further review of the 
wetland mitigation plan would occur following an initial City approval.   

 
• Stormwater management has been proposed for the development.  The City has 

completed an initial review of the stormwater management plan and provided high level 
comments to the applicant. The proposal includes 3 stormwater ponds that would 
accommodate stormwater generated from the commercial portion of the proposed 
development.  The City will continue to work with the applicant and would anticipate a 
more detailed submittal and calculations relating to the stormwater plan should the 
project proceed to final plat.   

 
• The applicant is proposing to preserve a large portion of the mature trees on the property 

(see gray area below).   
 

 



9285 Highway 12 – Concept Plan Review Page 8 

 

• A preliminary plat will need to be submitted. 
 
The applicant has provided the City with a robust package of details and information relating to 
the proposed development.  The proposed lifestyle auto condominium illustrations appear to 
utilize high quality building materials and a sophisticated design that is unique for this product in 
the metro area. There are many details that will need to be finalized prior to the City being able 
to formally act on the proposed site development and preliminary plat.  Due to the significant 
number of pieces included in the proposed site development, staff would like additional direction 
and feedback relating to the overall proposal so that additional review and direction can be 
provided to the applicant.  In particular, staff is seeking additional review and direction relating 
to the proposed land use, expansion of the UC – Urban Commercial zoning district, access to the 
property and the development of the residential properties on Nelson Road.  It is anticipated that 
following discussion and additional direction, the City would be able to work with the applicant 
to finalize the preliminary plans and bring back additional information and any revisions 
recommended for further consideration.  It is also anticipated that the City and applicant will 
have further discussions with MNDOT relating to their recommended access for this property. 
 
 
Recommendation: 
The applicant is seeking feedback from the Planning Commission pertaining to the proposed 
development.   

 
 
Attachments: 

1. Application 
2. Applicants Narrative 
3. Site Plan Package 
4. Building Illustrations 
5. Wetland Mitigation Plans 
6. Access Assessment 
7. Traffic Report 

 
 
 

         
 

 



 
Mixed Use Development Application for a 58 Acre Parcel 

Located on State Hwy 12 & Nelson Road in Independence for a 
Business Park, Upscale Life-Style Auto Condo & Residential 

Home Development 
 
 
Proposed Application Summary:  
 
Our proposed development by SH Ventures, Inc. (Stoddard Companies) is for a 
Mixed Use Development to include commercial space, upscale Life-Style Auto 
Condos and eight single family home lots abutting Nelson Road.  We are proposing 
to create one commercial building along the south border of Hwy 12, approximately 
eight buildings containing approximately 120-130 auto condos and eight residential 
lots along Nelson Road of approximately 3.21-4.35 acres each and 200+ feet of 
Nelson Road frontage.  The property is Zoned Agricultural on this Future 
Comprehensive Planned property of Urban Commercial and Agricultural. 
 
We are applying for: 

- Comp Plan Amendment to add a portion of the property from Ag to Urban 
Commercial; 

- Rezoning to allow the property to be rezoned; 
- Conditional Use Permit to consider a PUD; 
- Site Plan Review; and 
- Preliminary Plat. 

 
Since Our Concept Stage Application we have reduced the density, scale and mass 
of our proposed development significantly by omitting the two larger structures and 
increased our proposed residential lots from three lots to eight.  We are proposing 
one commercial building over 10,000 sf on the property fronting Hwy 12, with our  
private, gated auto condo phase south of the commercial.  We are proposing access 
to this phase of the development from Hwy 12 in our Legal 60 ft. wide MnDot open 
access area-refer to Exhibit #12.  We have also added an area to permit 
commercial/auto condo access directly to County Line Road if we are able to work 
our something with our Western neighbor. 
 
We additionally have enhanced the rural feel of our project by developing around 
the existing wetlands therefore allowing more space between buildings and have also 
increased our residential area to eight lots on 30.5 acres which is also 52.6% of the  



58 acre site.  Only residential access from the eight residential Lots is proposed on 
Nelson Road.  We are proposing to keep the existing metal outbuilding and small 
concrete silo on Lot 1 while demolishing the existing house and other outbuildings 
in that area for our redevelopment. 
 
 
Mixed Use Development Features: 
 
Commercial: We are proposing one building of 10,600 sf to eventually be 
home to likely 1-3 businesses to serve the community. 
 
Life-Style Auto Condos: We are proposing approximately 151,900 sf of 120-
130 upscale Life-Style Auto Condos.  Additional on-site parking will accommodate 
potential events about 6-8 times/year to be competitive in the marketplace.  We will 
have supervised event parking and private security for events and a Condo 
Homeowners Association will be required of all members to control storage, prohibit 
overnight stays and maintain grounds maintenance. 
 
Residential Lots:  We have increased the amount of proposed residential Lots to 
eight total to enhance the rural nature of the surrounding area to be compatible with 
the residential Lots on the east side of Nelson Road.  Lots will have a minimum of 
200 ft. Nelson Road frontage and be similar or larger than the residential Lots on the 
east side of Nelson Road. 
 
 
City of Independence Comprehensive Plan: 
 
The City of Independence Comprehensive Plan 2040 states various Visions, Goals 
and Policies it desires with its land planning including: 
 

- Promoting & attracting quality industrial and commercial business to the 
City of Independence; 

- Working to update official controls and ordinances to accommodate the 
projected comprehensive plan; and 

- Maintaining an economic balance and enhance the geographic advantage 
of the City. 

 
 
 
 



Our proposed development helps realize Independence’s Vision by: 
 

- Entitling our proposed mixed use development paving the way for 
constructing buildings featuring commercial with employment 
opportunities, auto condo and residential home options on underutilized 
land on this transportation corridor; 
 

- Taking geographic advantage of the abutting City of Delano’s commercial 
offerings to our western Independence location; and 

 
- Increase the Tax Base by a conservative number of $47,000,000.00 for the 

community which potentially helps offset other property taxes citywide. 
 
There has been a strong demand for similar projects and our proposed development 
aims to raise the bar and deliver beautifully designed commercial and auto condo 
space designed by award winning ESG Architects with ample open outdoor space.  
This market is burgeoning, and our proposed development may add north of 
$47,000,000.00 to the local tax base, while not requiring municipal sewer service.  
Municipal water service would be a strong plus however project is possible with 
water well service. 
 
We have designed ample open space with setbacks from abutting properties to the 
east, west and south.  We have attached architectural renderings and civil 
engineering plans in attached Exhibits.  This Narrative and accompanying Plans & 
Exhibits will further detail items as requested by City requirements with additional 
information on Legal Site access, market research, septic system design, life safety 
and traffic analysis 7 trip generation also in attached Exhibits 1 thru 12. 
 
 
Application Information: 
 

(a)  General Information:  Names and addresses of existing landowner and 
applicant found on attached Exhibit #1- PID’s & Legal Description of 
Property and on City Application Form.  Professional Consultants for our 
proposed development include: 
 

Architect:  ESG Architecture & Design 
   500 S. Washington Ave. #1080 
   Minneapolis, MN  55415 
 



  Civil Engineer: Anderson Engineering of MN, LLC 
     13605 1st Ave. N #100 
     Plymouth, MN  55441 
   

Traffic Engineer: Swing Traffic Solutions 
     4290 Norwood Land North 
     Plymouth, MN  55442 
 
  Attorney/Legal: Messerli & Kramer 
     1400 Fifth Street Towers 
     100 South Fifth St. 
     Minneapolis, MN  55402 
 
  Title Company: Custom Homes Builders Title LLC 
     10850Old County Rd 15 #100 
     Plymouth, MN  55441 
 

The place-setter name of “Independence Mixed Use Development” will be 
used until next Application stage.  Applicant and landowner confirm that a 
valid purchase agreement exists, and a title commitment is provided from 
Custom Homes Builders Title LLC of Plymouth, MN. 
 

(b)  Present Status:  Address of vacant land is 9285 US Highway No. 12 with 
property Identification Information and legal addresses attached.  Existing 
Zoning is Agricultural and is guided for Urban Commercial and Ag in the 
Comprehensive Land Use Plan.  The Comprehensive Land Use Plan is 
attached as Exhibit #2 and the Wetland Investigation Report and Notice of 
Decision is attached as Exhibit #3.  An updated site survey is being currently 
obtained.  
 

(c)  Site Conditions:  Site conditions depict a relatively flat site currently being 
farmed with a farmhouse, outbuildings and large wooded area.  Topography, 
drainage patterns and any other significant features per Survey. 

 
(d)  Architectural Renderings of Proposed Development:  Refer to attached 

Exhibit #4 -Architectural Renderings by ESG Architects depicting Upscale 
Auto Condos and Commercial featuring external façade showcasing glass 
panel, metal architectural ornamentation and more for low maintenance 
requirements.   

 



(e)  Civil Engineering & Landscape Plan by Anderson Engineering:  Please 
refer to attached Exhibit #5 for plans featuring very large areas of open space 
being left untouched in our development per our site plan. 
 

(f)  Utilities Plan:  A Utilities plan will is attached with the sanitary septic 
designed by a registered engineer & designer.  Ample space exists for this low 
usage need and while City water would be a huge advantage to this 
development, water can be provided for its water needs including fire safety 
refer to Exhibit #9- Water Well Capacity Memorandum by Anderson 
Engineering. 
 

(g) Legal Opinion of Hwy 12 MnDot Access:  A Legal Opinion Letter regarding 
our Hwy 12 MnDot Access by Messerli & Kramer is provided in Exhibit #6. 
 

(h)  Trip Generation Analysis:  A Trip Generation Analysis concluding the 
limited amount of traffic generated by our proposed development along with 
a right-in/right/out safety access lane per  STS Traffic Solutions, Vern Swing, 
PE is attached in Exhibit #12. 
 

(i) Additional Exhibits:  Additional Exhibits are attached for information 
including Market Research, Septic System, Concept Life Safety Fire 
Suppression Systems and more in attached Exhibits. 
 

(j)  Additional Information:  Applicant will forward any additional information 
as  requested by City in prompt fashion. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Refer to next page for list of Exhibits 
 
 



ATTACHED EXHIBITS: 
 

1. Property Identification (PID) & Legal Description of Property; 
2. Comprehensive Land Use Plan Map; 
3. Wetland Investigation Report & Notice of Decision (NOD); 
4. Architectural Renderings by ESG Architects; 
5. Civil Engineering & Landscape Plan Package by Anderson 

Engineering; 
6. Legal Opinion Letter Regarding Hwy 12 MnDot Access by  

Messerli & Kramer Law Firm; 
7.  Market Research/Opinion Letter by Maxfield Research & 

Consulting; 
8. Neighboring Nelson Road Map of SFH Lot Sizes Depicting Proposed 

New Lots Compatibility with Surrounding Neighborhood; 
9. Water Well Capacity Memorandum by Anderson Engineering; 
10.  Septic System Primary & Alternate Size Design by Homestead 

Septic; 
11. Concept Life Safety Fire Suppression System Options from Summit 

Fire Consulting; and 
12.  Trip Generation Analysis by STS Traffic Solutions, Vern Swing, PE. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cc: Mark Kaltas 
 Amber Simon     
 
 
 
 
 
File:  Independence Concept Application 



978
979

980
981

982
983

984

978

978

976

975

974

973

972

971

970

969

968

967

966

965

964

963

962

961

976

977

978

979

980

981

980

97
9

97
8

97
7

97
6

97
5

97
4

97
3

97
2

971

960
961

962
963

964
965

966
967

968
969

970

971

972

973

974

97
5

97
6

97
7

97
8

97
7 97
6

975

974

973 97
2 97

1 97
0 96

9 96
8 96
7

96
6

96
5

96
4

963

962

961

960

959

958

95
8

95
9

96
0

961

96
2

963
964

965
966

967
968
969
970

971
972

973

974

970
971
972
973
974

975
976

977

978

966

967

968969970
971

97
2

97
3

97
497

597
6977

978

978

978

966

967

968
969

970
971

972

968

96
7

96
6

969

975

976

97
7

97
8

97
9

972
971

970
969
968

967

966

965

974

971
970
969
968
967
966 96

5

96
4

966
967

968
969

970

972

971

969

968
967

966

965
964

965

966

967

968

969

970
971

972
973

974
975

976
977

978

979

980

982

981

982

981

980

979

978

978

960959958957

95
6

955954

96
0

96
1

96
2

96
3

96
4

965

96
6

96
7

968
969

970
971
972

973

974

975

976

978979980981982

981
980 979

978 977

976

975

974
973

972

97
1

968
969

970
971

972

974 973 972 971
970

966 967968
969970

970
971

972

970

971
972

97
2

972 973

974

972

96
9

96
8

96
7

96
6

96
5

96
4

972

971

970

969

968
967

966

965

975
976

977

97
8

978

964

963

962

959

958
958

958

98
0

963

962

982983

98
498

5

986

970

979

980

979

963

964

965

966

967

962

954

955

956

957

966

966

965

964

964

PLOTTED: COMM. NO.

DRAWING NO.

11/15/2022 16915

MIXED USE
DEVELOPMENT

1 3 6 0 5  1 s t  A v e n u e  N .  # 1 0 0
Plymouth,  MN 55441 |  ae-mn .com
P  763.412.4000  |   F  763.412.4090
A n d e r s o n  E n g i n e e r i n g  o f  M i n n e s o t a ,  L L C

DRAWING TITLE

CHECKED BY:DRAWN:DESIGNED:
LRKBNLRK

REVISION LOG
DESCRIPTION OF REVISIONSNO. DATE

INDEPENDENCE,
MINNESOTA

PRELIMINARY

LEGEND

PROPERTY LIMITS

EXISTING WETLAND

EXISTING DRAIN TILE

EXISTING STORM SEWER

EXISTING GAS MAIN

EXISTING OVERHEAD WIRES

EXISTING TELEPHONE

EXISTING UNDERGROUND ELECTRIC

EXISTING STORM SEWER INLET

REMOVE EXISTING UTILITY LINE

REMOVE EXISTING TREES

TYPE 1 WETLAND

TYPE 2 WETLAND

TYPE 3 WETLAND

UPLAND (AS FIELD DESIGNATED BY

CERTIFIED SEPTIC DESIGNER DALE DENN

- SEE REPORT)

EXISTING
CONDITIONS &

DEMOLITION PLAN

X100

EXISTING BARN
(PROTECT IN PLACE)REMOVE EXISTING SHEDS

REMOVE EXISTING HOUSE

EXISTING SILO
(PROTECT IN PLACE)

REMOVE EXISTING
DRIVEWAY

REMOVE EXISTING DRAIN TILE

EXISTING TREES
TO BE REMOVED

EXISTING GAS
EASEMENT

US HIGHWAY 12

N
EL

SO
N

 R
O

AD

N

0 100' 200'

STODDARD COMPANIES



10,600 SF
COMMERCIAL

P

A

P

P

A
P

A
P

A
P

A

A

A

AP

P

PLOTTED: COMM. NO.

DRAWING NO.

11/15/2022 16915

MIXED USE
DEVELOPMENT

1 3 6 0 5  1 s t  A v e n u e  N .  # 1 0 0
Plymouth,  MN 55441 |  ae-mn .com
P  763.412.4000  |   F  763.412.4090
A n d e r s o n  E n g i n e e r i n g  o f  M i n n e s o t a ,  L L C

DRAWING TITLE

CHECKED BY:DRAWN:DESIGNED:
LRKBNLRK

REVISION LOG
DESCRIPTION OF REVISIONSNO. DATE

INDEPENDENCE,
MINNESOTA

STODDARD COMPANIES

PRELIMINARY

SITE PLAN

US HIGHWAY 12

N
EL

SO
N

 R
O

AD

C
O

U
N

TY
 L

IN
E 

R
O

AD
 S

E

PARCEL AREA

LOT 1  4.21 ACRES
LOT 2  3.62 ACRES
LOT 3            3.21 ACRES
LOT 4  3.21 ACRES
LOT 5  3.21 ACRES
LOT 6  4.34 ACRES
LOT 7  4.35 ACRES
LOT 8  4.35 ACRES
LOT 9  1.87 ACRES
LOT 10  6.51 ACRES
LOT 11  5.14 ACRES

OUTLOT A    0.39 ACRES
OUTLOT B   0.57 ACRES
OUTLOT C   3.84 ACRES
OUTLOT D   9.11 ACRES

TOTAL 57.93 ACRES

BUILDING AREA

LOT 9 (COMMERCIAL)     10,600 SF
LOT 10 (72-UNITS AUTOCONDOS)     85,600 SF
LOT 11 (48-UNITS AUTOCONDOS)     66,300 SF

TOTAL   162,500 SF

SETBACKS

PARKING/DRIVEWAY
      COMMERCIAL/AUTOCONDO

FRONT 25' (FROM HWY 12)
SIDE/REAR 20' (PROPOSED ROADWAY & ADJACENT 

PROPERTY)
      RESIDENTIAL

SIDE 10'

BUILDING
      COMMERCIAL/AUTOCONDO

FRONT 100' (HWY 12)
SIDE/REAR 30'

      RESIDENTIAL
FRONT 70' (FROM NELSON ROAD)
SIDE 10'
REAR 20'

PARKING
LOTS 1 TO 8
RESIDENTIAL LOTS

LOT 9
AUTO STALLS PROVIDED = 39
10,600 SF COMMERCIAL @ 4.0 PER 1,000 SF = 42

LOT 11 - 72 AUTOCONDO UNITS
PARKING STALLS PROVIDED = 151
1,700 LF PERIMETER PARKING @ 1 STALL/25 LF = 68
2,088 LF BUILDING FACE @ 1 STALL/25 LF = 83

LOT 12 - 48 AUTOCONDO UNITS
AUTO STALLS PROVIDED = 97
1,000 LF PERIMETER PARKING @ 1 STALL/25 LF = 40
1,443 LF BUILDING FACE @ 1 STALL/25 LF = 57

LOT 1
SINGLE FAMILY HOME

(4.21 ACRES)

LOT 6
SINGLE FAMILY HOME

(4.34 ACRES)

50.0' NNG GAS EASEMENT

LOT 7
SINGLE FAMILY HOME

(4.35 ACRES)

LOT 8
SINGLE FAMILY HOME

(4.35 ACRES)

LOT 2
SINGLE FAMILY HOME

(3.62 ACRES)

LOT 3
SINGLE FAMILY HOME

(3.21 ACRES)

LOT 4
SINGLE FAMILY HOME

(3.21 ACRES)

LOT 5
SINGLE FAMILY HOME

(3.21 ACRES)

LEGEND

DRAIN FIELD (PRIMARY)

DRAIN FIELD (ALTERNATE)

BUILDING SETBACK

PARKING SETBACK

WETLAND BOUNDARY

UPLAND AREA BOUNDARY

PARCEL LOT BOUNDARY

LOT 10
AUTOCONDOS

LOT 9

LOT 11
AUTOCONDOS

SILO
(TO REMAIN)

STORAGE BUILDING
(TO REMAIN)

OUTLOT B OUTLOT C

OUTLOT D

OUTLOT A

P

A

ACCESS GATE

C100

EDGE OF TREE CANOPY TO REMAIN

21,400 SF
(18-UNITS)

21,400 SF
(18-UNITS)

21,400 SF
(18-UNITS)

21,400 SF
(18-UNITS)

14,800 SF
(12-UNITS)

14,800 SF
(12-UNITS)

14,800 SF
(12-UNITS)

21
,9

00
 S

F
(1

2-
U

N
IT

S)

EXISTING UPLAND BOUNDARY (TYP.)

DELINIATED EDGE OF WETLAND (TYP.)

POTENTIAL FUTURE ROADWAY
FOR EXTENSION THROUGH

ADJACENT PROPERTY TO
COUNTY LINE ROAD SE

PROPOSED RIGHT-IN/RIGHT-OUT ACCESS

N

0 100' 200'



10,600 SF
COMMERCIAL

P

A

P

P

A
P

A
P

A
P

A

A

A

AP

P

14
2 

LF
-1

2"
 H

D
PE

 @
 0

.5
0%

14
2 

LF
-1

5"
 H

D
PE

 @
 0

.5
0%

14
2 

LF
-1

5"
 H

D
PE

 @
 0

.5
0%

95 LF-18" HDPE @ 0.50%

FES-201
INV=963.00

10
6 

LF
-1

5"
 H

D
PE

 @
 0

.5
0%

FES-301
INV=963.00

93
 L

F-
15

" H
D

PE
 @

 0
.5

0%
16

6 
LF

-1
2"

 H
D

PE
 @

 0
.5

0%

218 LF-18" HDPE @ 0.50%

14
8 

LF
-1

2"
 H

DP
E 

@
 0

.5
0%

13
2 

LF
-1

2"
 H

DP
E 

@
 0

.5
0%

32 LF-15" HDPE @ 0.50%

78 LF-18" HDPE @ 1.67%

122 LF-12" HDPE @ 0.50%

30 LF-12" HDPE @ 0.50%

134 LF-12" HDPE @ 0.50%

32 LF-18" HDPE
@ 0.50%

FES-401
INV=963.00

127 LF-15" HDPE @ 3.50%

CBMH-502
RIM=973.96
INV NW=969.28
INV S=968.30
INV NE=968.30

CBMH-507
RIM=973.60
INV W=969.95
INV SE=969.95

CB-508
RIM=973.60
INV=970.10

CBMH-504
RIM=973.96
INV W=969.24
INV E=969.24

CBMH-505
RIM=973.96
INV W=969.39
INV E=969.14

CB-506
RIM=973.50
INV S=970.00

FES-501
INV=967.00

FES-801
INV=966.00

39 LF-12" HDPE @ 0.50%

CBMH-503
RIM=973.96
INV S=969.80
INV W=968.71
INV N=968.46

CB-509
RIM=973.50
INV=970.00

CB-309
RIM=970.36
INV=966.86

54 LF-24" HDPE @ 0.50%

CB-307
RIM=970.50
INV=967.00

44 LF-18" HDPE
@ 0.50%

CB-205
RIM=972.31
INV N=968.81

12
0 

LF
-1

2"
 H

D
PE

 @
 0

.5
0%

16
5 

LF
-1

2"
 H

DP
E 

@
 0

.5
0%

105 LF-15" HDPE @ 0.50%

43 LF - 18" HDPE @ 1.16%

OCS-802
RIM=969.50
INV NW=964.00
INV SE=966.50

FES-803
INV=964.50

27 LF - 18" HDPE @ 1.85%

FES-601
INV=958.00

96 LF - 18" HDPE @ 7.29%

OCS-602
RIM=967.50
INV NW=963.00
INV SE=965.00

22 LF - 18" HDPE @ 2.27%

FES-603
INV=962.50

FES-101
INV=965.00

FES-701
INV=963.00

OCS-702
RIM=965.50

INV NE=960.00
INV S=963.50

27 LF-18"
HDPE @ 1.85%

28 LF-18" HDPE @ 1.79%

FES-703
INV=959.50

CBMH-102
RIM=971.25
INV N=965.98
INV SE=965.48

CBMH-103
RIM=971.49
INV N=966.69
INV S=966.69

CBMH-104
RIM=971.73
INV N=967.65
INV S=967.40

CBMH-105
RIM=971.88
INV=968.36

CBMH-203
RIM=972.97
INV=969.47

CBMH-202
RIM=972.73

INV N=967.25
INV S=967.25

INV NE=967.00

CBMH-204
RIM=972.49

INV S=968.21
INV N=967.96

CBMH-302
RIM=971.82

INV NE=966.22
INV SE=963.67
INV SW=963.67

CBMH-303
RIM=970.77
INV SW=966.26
INV SE=964.44
INV NW=963.94

CBMH-402
RIM=971.36
INV W=967.45
INV N=967.45

CBMH-403
RIM=971.36

INV W=967.86
INV E=967.61

CBMH-404
RIM=973.31
INV=969.81

60 LF-12" HDPE @ 4.91%

27 LF-24" HDPE @ 2.48%

14
2 

LF
-1

5"
 H

D
PE

 @
 0

.5
0%

30 LF-15" HDPE @ 0.50%

PROPOSED SANITARY
SERVICE (TYP.)

PROPOSED WATER
SERVICE (TYP.)

PROPOSED WELL (TYP.)

CBMH-306
RIM=971.17
INV=967.67

CBMH-305
RIM=970.36
INV SW=966.84
INV SE=965.59

CBMH-304
RIM=970.80
INV S=966.12
INV N=966.03
INV NW=965.53

CB-308
RIM=970.36
INV=966.86

PLOTTED: COMM. NO.

DRAWING NO.

11/15/2022 16915

MIXED USE
DEVELOPMENT

1 3 6 0 5  1 s t  A v e n u e  N .  # 1 0 0
Plymouth,  MN 55441 |  ae-mn .com
P  763.412.4000  |   F  763.412.4090
A n d e r s o n  E n g i n e e r i n g  o f  M i n n e s o t a ,  L L C

DRAWING TITLE

CHECKED BY:DRAWN:DESIGNED:
LRKBNLRK

REVISION LOG
DESCRIPTION OF REVISIONSNO. DATE

INDEPENDENCE,
MINNESOTA

STODDARD COMPANIES

PRELIMINARY

N

0 100' 200'

GENERAL NOTES:

1. ALL WATERMAIN ARE REQUIRED TO BE INSTALLED AT 7.5 FEET
MINIMUM DEPTH FROM FINISHED GRADE AND PROVIDE
MINIMUM 10' HORIZONTAL AND 18" VERTICAL SEPARATION OF
ALL WATERMAIN CROSSINGS FROM STORM OR SANITARY
SEWER. WATERMAIN TO BE INSULATED PER C.E.A.M.
SPECIFICATIONS, WHERE COVER DEPTHS CANNOT BE
ACHIEVED. CONTRACTOR SHALL CONTACT THE ENGINEER IF
THERE ARE AREAS WHERE MINIMUM COVER DEPTH CANNOT BE
MET.

2. ALL NEW NON METALLIC SANITARY AND WATER SERVICE PIPE
SHALL HAVE TRACER WIRE, PER SPECIFICATIONS.

3. SUBSTITUTIONS FROM INFO. SHOWN HERON SHALL BE
REVIEWED AND APPROVED BY THE ENGINEER OF RECORD.

4. ALL PORTIONS OF THE STORM SEWER SYSTEM LOCATED
WITHIN 10 FEET OF THE BUILDING OR WATER SERVICE LINE
MUST BE TESTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH MINNESOTA RULES,
CHAPTER 4714, SECTION 1109.0.

5. PVC SANITARY SEWER MUST MEET ASTM STANDARDS LISTED IN
MINNESOTA RULES, CHAPTER 4714, TABLE 701.1 AND
INSTALLATION STANDARD 1. FITTINGS MUST COMPLY WITH
ASTM D1866, D2665, OR F794 RESPECTIVELY. JOINTS MUST BE
APPROVED MECHANICAL OR PUSH-ON UTILIZING ELASTOMERIC
SEAL, OR SOLVENT WELDING USING ASTM F656 AND ASTM
D2564. THE INSTALLATION MUST COMPLY WITH ASTM D232.

6. HDPE STORM SEWERS MUST MEET ASTM F714 (SEE MINNESOTA
RULES, CHAPRTER 4714, SECTION 1102.4 AND INSTALLATION
STANDARD 1). WATER TIGHT JOINTS MUST BE USED AT ALL
CONNECTIONS, INCLUDING STRUCTURES. THE INSTALLATION
MUST COMPLY WITH ASTM D2321.

7. WATER SERVICE MATERIALS SHALL BE PVC C900. CONTRACTOR
SHALL VERIFY EXISTING SERVICE SIZE AND MATERIALS PRIOR
TO CONSTRUCTION. ALL INSTALLED PIPE WILL REQUIRE
TESTING PER CITY AND STATE REQUIREMENTS. THIS WILL
INCLUDE, AT A MINIMUM, CONDUCTIVITY AND PRESSURE
TESTING, AS WELL AS TESTING FOR BACTERIA AND PROPER
DISINFECTION. FOLLOW C.E.A.M. STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS
UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE. INSTALL TRACER WIRE, JOINT
RESTRAINTS AND THRUST BLOCKING ON ALL WATERMAIN PIPE
AND FITTING, PER CITY OF MEDINA STANDARDS.

8. SANITARY SEWER PIPE MATERIALS SHALL BE PVC SDR 26. PIPE
SHALL BE INSULATED PER CITY AND C.E.A.M. STANDARDS
WHERE 7.5 FOOT COVER DEPTHS ARE NOT ACHIEVED. THIS
APPLIES TO ALL PROPOSED NEW PIPE FOR THIS PROJECT. ALL
SANITARY SEWER PIPE WILL REQUIRE TESTING PER CITY AND
C.E.A.M. STANDARDS. THIS WILL INCLUDE, AT A MINIMUM,
LEAKAGE AND ALIGNMENT TESTING.

9. ALL JOINTS AND CONNECTIONS IN THE STORM SEWER SYSTEM
SHALL BE WATER TIGHT. APPROVED RESILIENT RUBBER JOINTS
MUST BE USED TO MAKE WATER TIGHT CONNECTIONS TO
MANHOLES AND CATCH BASINS.

US HIGHWAY 12

N
EL
SO
N
 R
O
AD

C
O
U
N
TY
 L
IN
E 
R
O
AD
 S
E

LOT 1

LOT 6

LOT 7

LOT 8

LOT 2

LOT 3

LOT 4

LOT 5

LOT 10

LOT 9

LOT 11

OUTLOT B

OUTLOT C

OUTLOT D

OUTLOT A

UTILITY PLAN

C200

LEGEND
PROPERTY LIMITS

PROPOSED WATERMAIN

FUTURE SANITARY SEWER

PROPOSED STORM SEWER

PRIMARY SEPTIC
DRAINFIELD

ALTERNATE SEPTIC
DRAINFIELD

PROPOSED WATER WELL

PROPOSED SANITARY MANHOLE

PROPOSED STORM INLETS

FES

A

P

POND 2

POND 3

POND 1



978
979

980
981

982
983

984

978

979

980

978

978

976

975

974

973

972

971

970

969

968

967

966

965

964

963

962

961

976

977

978

979

980

981
982 980

97
9

97
8

97
7

97
6

97
5

97
4

97
3

97
2

971

960
961

962
963

964
965

966
967

968
969

970

971

972

973

974

97
5

97
6

97
7

97
8

97
7 97
6

975

974

973 97
2 97

1 97
0 96

9 96
8 96
7

96
6

96
5

96
4

963

962

961

960

959

958

95
8

95
9

96
0

961

96
2

963
964

965
966

967
968
969
970

971
972

973

974

970
971
972
973
974

975
976

977

978

966

967

968969970
971

97
2

97
3

97
497

597
6977

978

978

978

966

967

968
969

970
971

972

968

96
7

96
6

969

975

976

97
7

97
8

97
9

972
971

970
969
968

967

966

965

974

971
970
969
968
967
966 96

5

96
4

966
967

968
969

970

972

971

969

968
967

966

965
964

965

966

967

968

969

970
971

972
973

974
975

976
977

978

979

980

982

981

982

981

980

979

978

978

960959958957

95
6

955954

96
0

96
1

96
2

96
3

96
4

965

96
6

96
7

968
969

970
971
972

973

974

975

976

978979980981982

981
980 979

978 977

976

975

974
973

972

97
1

970

968
969

970
971

972

974 973 972 971
970

966 967968
969970

970
971

972

970

971
972

97
2

972 973

974

972

96
9

96
8

96
7

96
6

96
5

96
4

972

971

970

969

968
967

966

965

975
976

977

97
8

978

964

963

962

959

958
958

958

98
0

963

962

982983

98
498

5

986

970

979

980

979

963

964

965

966

967

962

954

955

956

957

966

966

965

964

964

96
0

96
1

96
2

96
3

96
4

96
5

96
6

96
7

96
7

96
7

96
5

96
4

96
4

965
967

967
968

969
970

972
972

973

973
97

3

974

974

97
3

97
4

975

975 975

959 960 961 962

961 962 963
964

965 966 967 968 969

971 970 969

97
2

972

97
2

973

97
3

97
4

97
5

974

971

973

970

969

968

974

972

970

960

968

972

963 965 966 967 968 969

970

971964

96
0

96
1

96
2

96
3

96
4

96
5

96
6

96
7

96
8

96
9

97
0

97
0

97
2

973

973

97
3

973
973

970 971

965

975

975 974 973 972
971 970 969

968
967

966
965

964
963

971
973

970

974
972

973

973

972
971

970

974

975

969

968

967
966

965
964

963

962
961

PLOTTED: COMM. NO.

DRAWING NO.

11/15/2022 16915

MIXED USE
DEVELOPMENT

1 3 6 0 5  1 s t  A v e n u e  N .  # 1 0 0
Plymouth,  MN 55441 |  ae-mn .com
P  763.412.4000  |   F  763.412.4090
A n d e r s o n  E n g i n e e r i n g  o f  M i n n e s o t a ,  L L C

DRAWING TITLE

CHECKED BY:DRAWN:DESIGNED:
LRKBNLRK

REVISION LOG
DESCRIPTION OF REVISIONSNO. DATE

INDEPENDENCE,
MINNESOTA

STODDARD COMPANIES

PRELIMINARY

OVERALL
EROSION
CONTROL

US HIGHWAY 12

N
EL

SO
N

 R
O

AD

N

0 100' 200'

C
O

U
N

TY
 L

IN
E 

R
O

AD
 S

E

LOT 1
SINGLE FAMILY HOME

(4.21 ACRES)

LOT 6
SINGLE FAMILY HOME

(4.34 ACRES)

LOT 7
SINGLE FAMILY HOME

(4.35 ACRES)

LOT 8
SINGLE FAMILY HOME

(4.35 ACRES)

LOT 2
SINGLE FAMILY HOME

(3.62 ACRES)

LOT 3
SINGLE FAMILY HOME

(3.21 ACRES)

LOT 4
SINGLE FAMILY HOME

(3.21 ACRES)

LOT 5
SINGLE FAMILY HOME

(3.21 ACRES)

LEGEND

LOT 10

LOT 9

LOT 11

OUTLOT B
OUTLOT C

OUTLOT D

OUTLOT A

C300

NOTES

PROPERTY LIMITS
EXISTING MINOR CONTOUR
EXISTING MAJOR CONTOUR
PROPOSED MINOR CONTOUR
PROPOSED MAJOR CONTOUR
EXISTING SPOT ELEVATION
DRAINAGE ARROW
BIOROLL EROSION CONTROL
SILT FENCE
PROPOSED STORM SEWER
INLET PROTECTION

966
965

1. ALL EROSION CONTROL MEASURES CALLED FOR ON THESE
PLANS, WHICH MAY INCLUDE SILT FENCE, SEDIMENTATION
BASINS  OR TEMPORARY SEDIMENT TRAPS, SHALL BE
CONSTRUCTED AND SERVICEABLE  IN THE FOLLOWING ORDER:

A.    ROCK CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCES.
B.     SILT FENCE.
C.    COMMON EXCAVATION AND EMBANKMENT (GRADING )
D.    SEED AND MULCH OR SOD.
E.     BIO-ROLL BARRIERS IN FINISHED GRADED AREAS.
F.     INLET AND OUTLET FACILITIES SUBSEQUENT TO STORM
SEWER WORK.

GRADING CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE AND MAINTAIN ALL
EROSION CONTROL MEASURES AS MAY BE SHOWN ON THESE
PLANS OR SPECIFICATIONS.  GRADING CONTRACTOR SHALL
IMPLEMENT ANY ADDITIONAL EROSION CONTROL MEASURES
AS MAY BE REQUIRED TO PROTECT ADJACENT PROPERTY.

2. ALL EROSION CONTROL FACILITIES SHALL BE MAINTAINED BY
THE  CONTRACTOR DURING GRADING OPERATIONS. ANY
TEMPORARY FACILITIES WHICH  ARE TO BE REMOVED AS
CALLED FOR ON THESE PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS  SHALL
BE REMOVED BY THE GRADING CONTRACTOR WHEN
DIRECTED BY THE  ENGINEER. THE GRADING CONTRACTOR
SHALL THEN RESTORE THE SUBSEQUENTLY  DISTURBED AREA
IN ACCORDANCE WITH THESE PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS.

3. ALL DISTURBED AREAS, EXCEPT AREAS TO BE PAVED AND/OR
SPECIFICALLY DESIGNED BY A LANDSCAPE PLAN, SHALL BE
COVERED WITH A MINIMUM 6" OF TOP SOIL. ALL DISTURBED
AREAS SHALL BE SEEDED & MULCHED AT THE PRESCRIBED
RATES WITHIN 72 HOURS OF FINAL GRADING UNLESS
OTHERWISE NOTED.

4. ALL EXPOSED SOIL AREAS WITH A CONTINUOUS POSITIVE
SLOPE WITHIN 200 LINEAL FEET OF ANY  SURFACE WATER,
MUST HAVE TEMPORARY EROSION PROTECTION OR
PERMANENT COVER FOR THE EXPOSED  SOIL AREAS YEAR
ROUND, ACCORDING TO THE FOLLOWING TABLE OF SLOPES
AND TIME FRAMES.

5. IT IS REQUIRED THAT SOILS TRACKED FROM THE SITE BY
MOTOR VEHICLES BE CLEANED DAILY FROM PAVED ROADWAY
SURFACES THROUGHOUT THE DURATION OF CONSTRUCTION.

6. ALL REQUIREMENTS OF THE LOCAL WATERSHED DISTRICT
SHALL BE SATISFIED PER THE APPROVED PERMIT.

7. ALL EROSION & SEDIMENT CONTROL MEASURES SHOWN ON
THIS PLAN AND IMPLEMENTED IN THE FIELD AS DIRECTED BY
THE ENGINEER SHALL CONFORM TO THE MPCA'S
"PROTECTING WATER QUALITY IN URBAN AREAS: BEST
MANAGEMENT PRACTICES FOR MINNESOTA".

8. ALL SOLID WASTE/ CONSTRUCTION DEBRIS SHALL BE
DISPOSED OF IN ACCORDANCE WITH MPCA  REQUIREMENTS.
HAZARDOUS MATERIALS SHALL BE STORED/ DISPOSED OF IN
COMPLIANCE WITH  MPCA REGULATIONS

9. INLET SEDIMENTATION CONTROL IS TO BE PROVIDED TO ALL
STORM SEWER CATCH BASINS THROUGHOUT CONSTRUCTION.
MEASURES APPLIED SHALL COMPLY WITH BEST MANAGEMENT
PRACTICES FOR MINNESOTA AND APPLICATIONS OF NPDES
PHASE II AS APPROPRIATE FOR PHASE OF CONSTRUCTION.

10. CONTRACTOR SHALL PREVENT SOIL LOSS DURING
CONSTRUCTION DUE TO WIND EROSION. DUST SHALL BE
SUPPRESSED THROUGH THE APPLICATION OF WATER AS
DEEMED NECESSARY BY THE CONTRACTOR, OR THROUGH
EQUIVALENT BMP'S AS APPROVED BY THE ENGINEER.

FFE=976.33

FFE=974.38

FFE=974.14

FFE=973.90

FFE=973.66

FFE=972.00

FFE=971.76

FFE=971.52

FFE=972.00

POND 3

POND 2

POND 1

SILT FENCE (TYP.)

(EROSION CONTROL FOR SINGLE FAMILY
HOME LOTS TO BE PREPARED INDIVIDUALLY

BY EACH HOME BUILDER)

CULVERTS TO BE
PROVIDED UNDER

ALL PROPOSED
RESIDENTIAL

DRIVEWAYS (TYP.)

966
965

EDGE OF DELINIATED
WETLAND (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
966

AutoCAD SHX Text
965

AutoCAD SHX Text
959.4



97
8

97
7 97

6

975

974

973

97
2

97
1

97
0

96
9 96

8 96
7

96
6

96
5

96
4

963

962

961

960

959

958

970

971

972

973

974

975

976

977

978

966

967

968

969

970

971

97
2

97
3

97
4

97
597

6977

978

978

978

966

967

968

969

970

971

972

968

96
7

96
6

969

970

969

968

967

966

965

972
972

972

971

970
969

968

967

966

965

963

962

979

980

979

966

966

964

FFE=976.33

FFE=974.38

FFE=974.14

FFE=973.90

FFE=973.66

FFE=972.00

FFE=971.76

FFE=971.52

FFE=972.00

972
972

973

973

97
3

974

974

97
3

97
4

975

975 975

959 960 961 962

961 962 963
964

965 966 967 968 969

971 970 969

97
2

972

97
2

973

97
3

97
4

97
5

974

971

973

970

969

968

974

972

970

960

968

972

963 965 966 967 968 969

970

971964

96
0

96
1

96
2

96
3

96
4

96
5

96
6

96
7

96
8

96
9

97
0

97
0

97
2

973

973

97
3

973

970 971

965

975

975 974 973 972
971 970 969

968
967

966
965

964
963

971
973

970

974
972

973

973

974

975

PLOTTED: COMM. NO.

DRAWING NO.

11/15/2022 16915

MIXED USE
DEVELOPMENT

1 3 6 0 5  1 s t  A v e n u e  N .  # 1 0 0
Plymouth,  MN 55441 |  ae-mn .com
P  763.412.4000  |   F  763.412.4090
A n d e r s o n  E n g i n e e r i n g  o f  M i n n e s o t a ,  L L C

DRAWING TITLE

CHECKED BY:DRAWN:DESIGNED:
LRKBNLRK

REVISION LOG
DESCRIPTION OF REVISIONSNO. DATE

INDEPENDENCE,
MINNESOTA

STODDARD COMPANIES

PRELIMINARY

EROSION
CONTROL PLAN

(NORTH)

US HIGHWAY 12

N
EL

SO
N

 R
O

AD

N

0 50' 100'

LEGEND

LOT 11

C301

NOTES
1. ALL EROSION CONTROL MEASURES CALLED FOR ON THESE

PLANS AND  SPECIFICATIONS, WHICH MAY INCLUDE SILT
FENCE, SEDIMENTATION BASINS  OR TEMPORARY SEDIMENT
TRAPS, SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED AND SERVICEABLE  IN THE
FOLLOWING ORDER:

A.    ROCK CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCES.
B.     SILT FENCE.
C.    COMMON EXCAVATION AND EMBANKMENT (GRADING )
D.    SEED AND MULCH OR SOD.
E.     BIO-ROLL BARRIERS IN FINISHED GRADED AREAS.
F.     INLET AND OUTLET FACILITIES SUBSEQUENT TO STORM
SEWER WORK.

GRADING CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE AND MAINTAIN ALL
EROSION CONTROL MEASURES AS MAY BE SHOWN ON THESE
PLANS OR SPECIFICATIONS.  GRADING CONTRACTOR SHALL
IMPLEMENT ANY ADDITIONAL EROSION CONTROL MEASURES
AS MAY BE REQUIRED TO PROTECT ADJACENT PROPERTY.

2. ALL EROSION CONTROL FACILITIES SHALL BE MAINTAINED BY
THE  CONTRACTOR DURING GRADING OPERATIONS. ANY
TEMPORARY FACILITIES WHICH  ARE TO BE REMOVED AS
CALLED FOR ON THESE PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS  SHALL
BE REMOVED BY THE GRADING CONTRACTOR WHEN
DIRECTED BY THE  ENGINEER. THE GRADING CONTRACTOR
SHALL THEN RESTORE THE SUBSEQUENTLY  DISTURBED AREA
IN ACCORDANCE WITH THESE PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS.

3. ALL DISTURBED AREAS, EXCEPT AREAS TO BE PAVED AND/OR
SPECIFICALLY DESIGNED BY A LANDSCAPE PLAN, SHALL BE
COVERED WITH A MINIMUM 6" OF TOP SOIL. ALL DISTURBED
AREAS SHALL BE SEEDED & MULCHED AT THE PRESCRIBED
RATES WITHIN 72 HOURS OF FINAL GRADING UNLESS
OTHERWISE NOTED.

4. ALL EXPOSED SOIL AREAS WITH A CONTINUOUS POSITIVE
SLOPE WITHIN 200 LINEAL FEET OF ANY  SURFACE WATER,
MUST HAVE TEMPORARY EROSION PROTECTION OR
PERMANENT COVER FOR THE EXPOSED  SOIL AREAS YEAR
ROUND, ACCORDING TO THE FOLLOWING TABLE OF SLOPES
AND TIME FRAMES.

5. IT IS REQUIRED THAT SOILS TRACKED FROM THE SITE BY
MOTOR VEHICLES BE CLEANED DAILY FROM PAVED ROADWAY
SURFACES THROUGHOUT THE DURATION OF CONSTRUCTION.

6. ALL REQUIREMENTS OF THE LOCAL WATERSHED DISTRICT
SHALL BE SATISFIED PER THE APPROVED PERMIT.

7. ALL EROSION & SEDIMENT CONTROL MEASURES SHOWN ON
THIS PLAN AND IMPLEMENTED IN THE FIELD AS DIRECTED BY
THE ENGINEER SHALL CONFORM TO THE MPCA'S
"PROTECTING WATER QUALITY IN URBAN AREAS: BEST
MANAGEMENT PRACTICES FOR MINNESOTA".

8. ALL SOLID WASTE/ CONSTRUCTION DEBRIS SHALL BE
DISPOSED OF IN ACCORDANCE WITH MPCA  REQUIREMENTS.
HAZARDOUS MATERIALS SHALL BE STORED/ DISPOSED OF IN
COMPLIANCE WITH  MPCA REGULATIONS

9. INLET SEDIMENTATION CONTROL IS TO BE PROVIDED TO ALL
STORM SEWER CATCH BASINS THROUGHOUT CONSTRUCTION.
MEASURES APPLIED SHALL COMPLY WITH BEST MANAGEMENT
PRACTICES FOR MINNESOTA AND APPLICATIONS OF NPDES
PHASE II AS APPROPRIATE FOR PHASE OF CONSTRUCTION.

10. CONTRACTOR SHALL PREVENT SOIL LOSS DURING
CONSTRUCTION DUE TO WIND EROSION. DUST SHALL BE
SUPPRESSED THROUGH THE APPLICATION OF WATER AS
DEEMED NECESSARY BY THE CONTRACTOR, OR THROUGH
EQUIVALENT BMP'S AS APPROVED BY THE ENGINEER.

LOT 10

LOT 9

LOT 11

OUTLOT B OUTLOT C

OUTLOT D

OUTLOT A

LOT 2

LOT 3

LOT 4

LOT 1

POND 2
NWL=963.0

POND 1
NWL=967.0

SILT FENCE (TYP.)

INSTALL EROSION CONTROL
BLANKET ON ALL 3:1 SLOPES (TYP.)

RIPRAP AT
FLARED END SECTION

RIPRAP AT
FLARED END SECTION

SEE SHEET C302

PROPERTY LIMITS
EXISTING MINOR CONTOUR
EXISTING MAJOR CONTOUR
PROPOSED MINOR CONTOUR
PROPOSED MAJOR CONTOUR
EXISTING SPOT ELEVATION
DRAINAGE ARROW
BIOROLL EROSION CONTROL
SILT FENCE
WETLAND DELINIATION
PROPOSED STORM SEWER
INLET PROTECTION

966
965

966
965

INLET PROTECTION AT
CATCH BASIN (TYP.)

EDGE OF DELINIATED
WETLAND (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
966

AutoCAD SHX Text
965

AutoCAD SHX Text
959.4



97
8

97
7 97

6

975

974

973

97
2

97
1

97
0

96
9 96

8 96
7

96
6

96
5

96
4

963

962

961

960

959

958

95
8

95
9

96
0

961

96
2

963

964

965

966

967

968

969

970

971

972

973

974

978

975

976

97
7

97
8

97
9

964

965

966

967

968

969

970

971

972

973

974

975
976

977

978

96
0

96
1

972

971

970

969

968

967

966

965

958

958

98
0

963

962

979

980

979

964

FFE=974.38

FFE=974.14

FFE=973.90

FFE=973.66

FFE=972.00

FFE=971.76

FFE=971.52

FFE=972.00
96

0
96

1
96

2
96

3
96

4
96

5
96

6
96

7

96
7

96
7

96
5

96
4

96
4

965
967

967
968

969
970

972
972

973

973

97
3

974

959 960 961 962

961 962 963
964

965 966 967 968 969

971 970 969

97
2

972
973

960

968

972

963 965 966 967 968 969

970

971964

96
0

96
1

96
2

96
3

96
4

96
5

96
6

96
7

96
8

96
9

97
0

97
0

97
2

973

973

97
3

973
973

970 971

965

973

973

972
971

970

974

969

968

967
966

965
964

963

962
961

PLOTTED: COMM. NO.

DRAWING NO.

11/15/2022 16915

MIXED USE
DEVELOPMENT

1 3 6 0 5  1 s t  A v e n u e  N .  # 1 0 0
Plymouth,  MN 55441 |  ae-mn .com
P  763.412.4000  |   F  763.412.4090
A n d e r s o n  E n g i n e e r i n g  o f  M i n n e s o t a ,  L L C

DRAWING TITLE

CHECKED BY:DRAWN:DESIGNED:
LRKBNLRK

REVISION LOG
DESCRIPTION OF REVISIONSNO. DATE

INDEPENDENCE,
MINNESOTA

STODDARD COMPANIES

PRELIMINARY

EROSION
CONTROL PLAN

(SOUTH)

N

0 50' 100'

LEGEND

C302

NOTES
1. ALL EROSION CONTROL MEASURES CALLED FOR ON THESE

PLANS, WHICH MAY INCLUDE SILT FENCE, SEDIMENTATION
BASINS  OR TEMPORARY SEDIMENT TRAPS, SHALL BE
CONSTRUCTED AND SERVICEABLE  IN THE FOLLOWING ORDER:

A.    ROCK CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCES.
B.     SILT FENCE.
C.    COMMON EXCAVATION AND EMBANKMENT (GRADING )
D.    SEED AND MULCH OR SOD.
E.     BIO-ROLL BARRIERS IN FINISHED GRADED AREAS.
F.     INLET AND OUTLET FACILITIES SUBSEQUENT TO STORM
SEWER WORK.

GRADING CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE AND MAINTAIN ALL
EROSION CONTROL MEASURES AS MAY BE SHOWN ON THESE
PLANS OR SPECIFICATIONS.  GRADING CONTRACTOR SHALL
IMPLEMENT ANY ADDITIONAL EROSION CONTROL MEASURES
AS MAY BE REQUIRED TO PROTECT ADJACENT PROPERTY.

2. ALL EROSION CONTROL FACILITIES SHALL BE MAINTAINED BY
THE  CONTRACTOR DURING GRADING OPERATIONS. ANY
TEMPORARY FACILITIES WHICH  ARE TO BE REMOVED AS
CALLED FOR ON THESE PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS  SHALL
BE REMOVED BY THE GRADING CONTRACTOR WHEN
DIRECTED BY THE  ENGINEER. THE GRADING CONTRACTOR
SHALL THEN RESTORE THE SUBSEQUENTLY  DISTURBED AREA
IN ACCORDANCE WITH THESE PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS.

3. ALL DISTURBED AREAS, EXCEPT AREAS TO BE PAVED AND/OR
SPECIFICALLY DESIGNED BY A LANDSCAPE PLAN, SHALL BE
COVERED WITH A MINIMUM 6" OF TOP SOIL. ALL DISTURBED
AREAS SHALL BE SEEDED & MULCHED AT THE PRESCRIBED
RATES WITHIN 72 HOURS OF FINAL GRADING UNLESS
OTHERWISE NOTED.

4. ALL EXPOSED SOIL AREAS WITH A CONTINUOUS POSITIVE
SLOPE WITHIN 200 LINEAL FEET OF ANY  SURFACE WATER,
MUST HAVE TEMPORARY EROSION PROTECTION OR
PERMANENT COVER FOR THE EXPOSED  SOIL AREAS YEAR
ROUND, ACCORDING TO THE FOLLOWING TABLE OF SLOPES
AND TIME FRAMES.

5. IT IS REQUIRED THAT SOILS TRACKED FROM THE SITE BY
MOTOR VEHICLES BE CLEANED DAILY FROM PAVED ROADWAY
SURFACES THROUGHOUT THE DURATION OF CONSTRUCTION.

6. ALL REQUIREMENTS OF THE LOCAL WATERSHED DISTRICT
SHALL BE SATISFIED PER THE APPROVED PERMIT.

7. ALL EROSION & SEDIMENT CONTROL MEASURES SHOWN ON
THIS PLAN AND IMPLEMENTED IN THE FIELD AS DIRECTED BY
THE ENGINEER SHALL CONFORM TO THE MPCA'S
"PROTECTING WATER QUALITY IN URBAN AREAS: BEST
MANAGEMENT PRACTICES FOR MINNESOTA".

8. ALL SOLID WASTE/ CONSTRUCTION DEBRIS SHALL BE
DISPOSED OF IN ACCORDANCE WITH MPCA  REQUIREMENTS.
HAZARDOUS MATERIALS SHALL BE STORED/ DISPOSED OF IN
COMPLIANCE WITH  MPCA REGULATIONS

9. INLET SEDIMENTATION CONTROL IS TO BE PROVIDED TO ALL
STORM SEWER CATCH BASINS THROUGHOUT CONSTRUCTION.
MEASURES APPLIED SHALL COMPLY WITH BEST MANAGEMENT
PRACTICES FOR MINNESOTA AND APPLICATIONS OF NPDES
PHASE II AS APPROPRIATE FOR PHASE OF CONSTRUCTION.

10. CONTRACTOR SHALL PREVENT SOIL LOSS DURING
CONSTRUCTION DUE TO WIND EROSION. DUST SHALL BE
SUPPRESSED THROUGH THE APPLICATION OF WATER AS
DEEMED NECESSARY BY THE CONTRACTOR, OR THROUGH
EQUIVALENT BMP'S AS APPROVED BY THE ENGINEER.

LOT 10

LOT 11

OUTLOT D

LOT 2

LOT 3

LOT 4

LOT 5

LOT 6

INSTALL EROSION CONTROL
BLANKET ON ALL 3:1 SLOPES (TYP.)

SILT FENCE (TYP.)

POND 3
NWL=965.0

POND 2
NWL=963.0

PROPERTY LIMITS
EXISTING MINOR CONTOUR
EXISTING MAJOR CONTOUR
PROPOSED MINOR CONTOUR
PROPOSED MAJOR CONTOUR
EXISTING SPOT ELEVATION
DRAINAGE ARROW
BIOROLL EROSION CONTROL
SILT FENCE
PROPOSED STORM SEWER
INLET PROTECTION

966
965

966

965

RIPRAP AT
FLARED END SECTION

RIPRAP AT
FLARED END SECTION

INLET PROTECTION AT
CATCH BASIN (TYP.)

EDGE OF DELINIATED
WETLAND (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
966

AutoCAD SHX Text
965

AutoCAD SHX Text
959.4



978
979

980
981

982
983

984

978

976

975

974

973

972

971

970

969

968

967

966

965

964

963

962

961

978

980

97
9

97
8

97
7

97
6

97
5

97
4

97
3

97
2

971

960
961

962
963

964
965

966
967

968
969

970

971

972

973

974

97
5

97
6

97
7

97
8

97
7

97
6

975

974

973 97
2 97

1 97
0 96

9 96
8 96
7

96
6

96
5

96
4

963

962

961

960

959

958

95
8

95
9

96
0

961

96
2

963
964

965
966

967
968
969
970

971
972

973

974

970
971
972
973
974

975
976

977

978

966

967

968969970
971

97
2

97
3

97
497

597
6977

978

978

978

966

967

968
969

970
971

972

968

96
7

96
6

969

975

976

97
7

97
8

97
9

972
971

970
969
968

967

966

965

974

971
970
969
968
967
966 96

5

96
4

966
967

968
969

970

972

971

969

968
967

966

965
964

965

966

967

968

969

970
971

972
973

974
975

976
977

978

979

980

982

981

982

981

980

979

978

977

976

975

960959958957

95
6

955954

96
0

96
1

96
2

96
3

96
4

965

96
6

96
7

968
969

970
971
972

973

974

975

976

978979980981982

981
980 979

978 977

976

975

974
973

972

97
1

968
969

970
971

972

974 973 972 971
970

966 967968
969970

970
971

972

970

971
972

97
2

972
973

974

972

96
9

96
8

96
7

96
6

96
5

96
4

972

971

970

969

968
967

966

965

975
976

977

97
8

978

964

963

962

959

958

958

958

98
0

963

962

982983

98
498

5

986

970

979

980

979

963

964

965

966

967

968

962

954

955

956

957

958

959

960

966

966

965

964

964

CB-105

CBMH-102

CBMH-307

FES-201

CB-203

CBMH-202

CBMH-204

CB-306

CB-308

CBMH-303

CBMH-304

CBMH-305

CB-309

CB-404

FES-501

CBMH-502

CBMH-505 CB-509

CBMH-504
CBMH-503

FES-401

OCS-702

FES-801

CBMH-302

CBMH-104

OCS-602

FES-101

FES-701

FES-703

FES-603

CB-205

CBMH-103

CB-506

CBMH-507

CBMH-508

OCS-802

96
0

96
1

96
2

96
3

96
4

96
5

96
6

96
7

96
7

96
7

96
5

96
4

96
4

965
967

967
968

969
970

972
972

973

973

97
3

974

974

97
3

97
4

975

975 975

959 960 961 962

961 962 963
964

965 966 967 968 969

971 970 969

97
2

972

97
2

973

97
3

97
4

97
5

974

971

973

970

969

968

974

972

970

960

968

972

963 965 966 967 968 969

970

971964

96
0

96
1

96
2

96
3

96
4

96
5

96
6

96
7

96
8

96
9

97
0

97
0

97
2

973

973

97
3

973
973

970 971

965

975

975 974 973 972
971 970 969

968
967

966
965

964
963

971
973

970

974
972

973

973

972
971

FES-301

CBMH-402CBMH-403

FES-601

970

974

975

969

968

967
966

965
964

963

962
961

974
973

972
971

970

974

973

972

971

PLOTTED: COMM. NO.

DRAWING NO.

11/15/2022 16915

MIXED USE
DEVELOPMENT

1 3 6 0 5  1 s t  A v e n u e  N .  # 1 0 0
Plymouth,  MN 55441 |  ae-mn .com
P  763.412.4000  |   F  763.412.4090
A n d e r s o n  E n g i n e e r i n g  o f  M i n n e s o t a ,  L L C

DRAWING TITLE

CHECKED BY:DRAWN:DESIGNED:
LRKBNLRK

REVISION LOG
DESCRIPTION OF REVISIONSNO. DATE

INDEPENDENCE,
MINNESOTA

STODDARD COMPANIES

PRELIMINARY

N

0 100' 200'

1. ALL DISTURBED AREAS TO BE SEEDED OR SODDED
PER LANDSCAPE PLAN.

2. PROPOSED CONTOURS AND SPOT ELEVATIONS ARE
TO FINISHED GRADE.

3. NO GRADED SLOPES SHALL EXCEED 3:1 (HOR:VER)

4. FINISHED PAVEMENT SHALL BE FLUSH WITH EXISTING
ADJACENT PAVEMENT.

5. SEE WETLAND MITIGATION PLAN C500 FOR WETLAND
IMPACTS.

PROPERTY LIMITS

WETLAND DELINEATION LINE

EXISTING MINOR CONTOUR

EXISTING MAJOR CONTOUR

PROPOSED MINOR CONTOUR

PROPOSED MAJOR CONTOUR

DRAINAGE ARROW

PROPOSED CONCRETE C&G

SPOT ELEVATION

LEGEND

966

965

966

965

800.1

NOTE

US HIGHWAY 12

N
EL
SO
N
 R
O
AD

C
O
U
N
TY
 L
IN
E 
R
O
AD
 S
E

LOT 1

LOT 6

LOT 7

LOT 8

LOT 2

LOT 3

LOT 4

LOT 5

LOT 10

LOT 9

LOT 11

OUTLOT B OUTLOT C

OUTLOT D

OUTLOT A

OVERALL GRADING
PLAN

C400

96
7

EDGE OF DELINIATED
WETLAND (TYP.)



97
8

97
7 97

6

975

974

973

97
2

97
1

97
0

96
9 96

8 96
7

96
6

96
5

96
4

963

962

961

960

959

958

970

971

972

973

974

975

976

977

978

966

967

968

969

970

971

97
2

97
3

97
4

97
597

6977

978

978

978

966

967

968

969

970

971

972

968

96
7

96
6

969

972
972

972

971

970

969

968

967

966

965

963

962

979

980

979

966

966

964

+9
72

.0

+974.9

+9
75

.5

2.0%
+975.5

+9
74

.2

4.0%
+973.097

6.0
8+ +972.7

1.0% 2.0%

+973.3 +970.7

+971.62

3.0%+9
73

.23

+9
72

.97

2.0%

+9
73

.90

97
6.0

8+

+972.97

+972.49

+972.73

+973.66

+973.42

+974.14
0.5%

0.5%

0.5%

0.5%

0.5%

0.5%

0.5%

0.5%

2.0%
1.0%

4.4%

3.0%

4.2%

4.8%

+9
73

.38

4.2%

1.
5%

1.8%

1.
5%

1.7%

1.
5%

1.7%

1.
5%

972.70+

4.0%

1.0%

FFE=972.00

FFE=971.76

FFE=971.52

FFE=972.00

+9
71

.76
0.5%

+9
71

.30

0.5%

+971.52
0.5%

0.5%
2.

0%
1.

0%

3.
0%

+971.04

4.
0%

+970.87

+971.03

973.20+

4.0%

+971.6

1.6%

+971.28
0.5%

0.5%
2.

0%

+9
75

.7

+9
74

.2

2.0%

97
3.0

8+

+973.58

2.0%

97
3.

82
+

1.0%

+9
75

.5

4.5% 97
4.8

+

97
5.3

+97
4.8

+

975.5+

+969.4

2.7%

2.7%

2.7%

1.1%

2.0%

CB-105

CBMH-307

FES-201

CB-203

CBMH-202

CBMH-204

CB-306

CB-308

CBMH-303

CBMH-304

CBMH-305

CB-309

CB-404

FES-501

CBMH-502

CBMH-505 CB-509

CBMH-504
CBMH-503

FES-401

OCS-702

FES-801

CBMH-302

CBMH-104

POND 1
NWL=967.0

POND 2
NWL=963.0

FES-701

FES-703

CB-205

CBMH-103

CB-506

CBMH-507

CBMH-508

OCS-802

972
972

973

973

97
3

974

974

97
3

97
4

975

975 975

959 960 961 962

961 962 963
964

965 966 967 968 969

971 970 969

97
2

972

97
2

973

97
3

97
4

97
5

974

971

973

970

969

968

974

972

970

960

968

972

963 965 966 967 968 969

970

971964

96
0

96
1

96
2

96
3

96
4

96
5

96
6

96
7

96
8

96
9

97
0

97
0

97
2

973

973

97
3

973

970 971

965

975

975 974 973 972
971 970 969

968
967

966
965

964
963

971
973

970

974
972

973

973

FES-301

CBMH-402CBMH-403

974

975

974
973

972
971

970

974

973

972

971

FFE=976.33

FFE=974.38

FFE=974.14

FFE=973.90

FFE=973.66

PLOTTED: COMM. NO.

DRAWING NO.

11/15/2022 16915

MIXED USE
DEVELOPMENT

1 3 6 0 5  1 s t  A v e n u e  N .  # 1 0 0
Plymouth,  MN 55441 |  ae-mn .com
P  763.412.4000  |   F  763.412.4090
A n d e r s o n  E n g i n e e r i n g  o f  M i n n e s o t a ,  L L C

DRAWING TITLE

CHECKED BY:DRAWN:DESIGNED:
LRKBNLRK

REVISION LOG
DESCRIPTION OF REVISIONSNO. DATE

INDEPENDENCE,
MINNESOTA

STODDARD COMPANIES

PRELIMINARY

N

0 50' 100'

GRADING PLAN
NORTH

C401

LOT 1

LOT 2

LOT 3

LOT 4

LOT 11

OUTLOT B

OUTLOT C

OUTLOT D

OUTLOT A

LOT 10

LOT 9

US HIGHWAY 12

PROPERTY LIMITS

WETLAND DELINEATION LINE

EXISTING MINOR CONTOUR

EXISTING MAJOR CONTOUR

PROPOSED MINOR CONTOUR

PROPOSED MAJOR CONTOUR

DRAINAGE ARROW

PROPOSED CONCRETE C&G

SPOT ELEVATION

LEGEND

966

965

966

965

800.1

NOTE
1. ALL DISTURBED AREAS TO BE SEEDED OR SODDED

PER LANDSCAPE PLAN.

2. PROPOSED CONTOURS AND SPOT ELEVATIONS ARE
TO FINISHED GRADE.

3. NO GRADED SLOPES SHALL EXCEED 3:1 (HOR:VER)

4. FINISHED PAVEMENT SHALL BE FLUSH WITH EXISTING
ADJACENT PAVEMENT.

5. SEE WETLAND MITIGATION PLAN C500 FOR WETLAND
IMPACTS.

EDGE OF DELINIATED
WETLAND (TYP.)



97
8

97
7 97

6

975

974

973

97
2

97
1

97
0

96
9 96

8 96
7

96
6

96
5

96
4

963

962

961

960

959

958

95
8

95
9

96
0

961

96
2

963

964

965

966

967

968

969

970

971

972

973

974

978

975

976

97
7

97
8

97
9

964

965

966

967

968

969

970

971

972

973

974

975
976

977

978

96
0

96
1

972

971

970

969

968

967

966

965

958

958

98
0

963

962

979

980

979

964

+973.3 +970.7

+971.62

3.0%+9
73

.23

+9
72

.97

2.0%

+9
73

.90

+972.97

+972.49

+972.73

+973.66

+973.42

0.5%

0.5%

0.5%

0.5%

0.5%

0.5%

2.0%
1.0%

4.4%

3.0%

4.2%

4.8%

+9
73

.38

4.2%

1.
5%

1.8%

1.
5%

1.7%

1.
5%

1.7%

1.
5%

972.70+

4.0%

+9
73

.4
21.0%

2.2%

1.0%

FFE=972.00

FFE=971.76

FFE=971.52

FFE=972.00

+9
71

.76
0.5%

+9
71

.30

0.5%

+971.52
0.5%

0.5%

2.
0%

1.
0%

3.
0%

+971.04

4.
0%

+970.87

+971.03

973.20+

4.0%

+971.28
0.5%

0.5%

2.
0%

97
3.0

8+

97
3.

82
+

CB-105

CBMH-102

CBMH-307

FES-201

CB-203

CBMH-202

CBMH-204

CB-306

CB-308

CBMH-303

CBMH-304

CBMH-305

FES-401

OCS-702

CBMH-302

CBMH-104

POND 3
NWL=965.0

POND 2
NWL=963.0

OCS-602

FES-101

FES-701

FES-703

FES-603

CB-205

CBMH-103

96
0

96
1

96
2

96
3

96
4

96
5

96
6

96
7

96
7

96
7

96
5

96
4

96
4

965
967

967
968

969
970

972
972

973

973

97
3

974

959 960 961 962

961 962 963
964 965 966 967 968 969

971 970 969

97
2

973

960

968

972

963 965 966 967 968 969

970

971964

96
0

96
1

96
2

96
3

96
4

96
5

96
6

96
7

96
8

96
9

97
0

97
0

97
2

973

973

97
3

973
973

970 971

965

973

973

972
971

FES-301

FES-601

970

974

969

968

967
966

965
964

963

962
961

FFE=974.38

FFE=974.14

FFE=973.90

FFE=973.66

PLOTTED: COMM. NO.

DRAWING NO.

11/15/2022 16915

MIXED USE
DEVELOPMENT

1 3 6 0 5  1 s t  A v e n u e  N .  # 1 0 0
Plymouth,  MN 55441 |  ae-mn .com
P  763.412.4000  |   F  763.412.4090
A n d e r s o n  E n g i n e e r i n g  o f  M i n n e s o t a ,  L L C

DRAWING TITLE

CHECKED BY:DRAWN:DESIGNED:
LRKBNLRK

REVISION LOG
DESCRIPTION OF REVISIONSNO. DATE

INDEPENDENCE,
MINNESOTA

STODDARD COMPANIES

PRELIMINARY

N

0 50' 100'

GRADING PLAN
SOUTH

C402

LOT 6

LOT 7

LOT 5

LOT 10

LOT 11

OUTLOT D

LOT 2

LOT 3

LOT 4

PROPERTY LIMITS

WETLAND DELINEATION LINE

EXISTING MINOR CONTOUR

EXISTING MAJOR CONTOUR

PROPOSED MINOR CONTOUR

PROPOSED MAJOR CONTOUR

DRAINAGE ARROW

PROPOSED CONCRETE C&G

SPOT ELEVATION

LEGEND

966

965

966

965

800.1

NOTE
1. ALL DISTURBED AREAS TO BE SEEDED OR SODDED

PER LANDSCAPE PLAN.

2. PROPOSED CONTOURS AND SPOT ELEVATIONS ARE
TO FINISHED GRADE.

3. NO GRADED SLOPES SHALL EXCEED 3:1 (HOR:VER)

4. FINISHED PAVEMENT SHALL BE FLUSH WITH EXISTING
ADJACENT PAVEMENT.

5. SEE WETLAND MITIGATION PLAN C500 FOR WETLAND
IMPACTS.

EDGE OF DELINIATED
WETLAND (TYP.)



978
979

980
981

982
983

984

978

979

980

978

978

976

975

974

973

972

971

970

969

968

967

966

965

964

963

962

961

976

977

978

979

980

981
982 980

97
9

97
8

97
7

97
6

97
5

97
4

97
3

97
2

971

960
961

962
963

964
965

966
967

968
969

970

971

972

973

974

97
5

97
6

97
7

97
8

97
7 97
6

975

974

973 97
2 97

1 97
0 96

9 96
8 96
7

96
6

96
5

96
4

963

962

961

960

959

958

95
8

95
9

96
0

961

96
2

963
964

965
966

967
968
969
970

971
972

973

974

970
971
972
973
974

975
976

977

978

966

967

968969970
971

97
2

97
3

97
497

597
6977

978

978

978

966

967

968
969

970
971

972

968

96
7

96
6

969

975

976

97
7

97
8

97
9

972
971

970
969
968

967

966

965

974

971
970
969
968
967
966 96

5

96
4

966
967

968
969

970

972

971

969

968
967

966

965
964

965

966

967

968

969

970
971

972
973

974
975

976
977

978

979

980

982

981

982

981

980

979

978

978

960959958957

95
6

955954

96
0

96
1

96
2

96
3

96
4

965

96
6

96
7

968
969

970
971
972

973

974

975

976

978979980981982

981
980 979

978 977

976

975

974
973

972

97
1

970

968
969

970
971

972

974 973 972 971
970

966 967968
969970

970
971

972

970

971
972

97
2

972 973

974

972

96
9

96
8

96
7

96
6

96
5

96
4

972

971

970

969

968
967

966

965

975
976

977

97
8

978

964

963

962

959

958

958

958

98
0

963

962

982983

98
498

5

986

970

979

980

979

963

964

965

966

967

962

954

955

956

957

966

966

965

964

964

PLOTTED: COMM. NO.

DRAWING NO.

11/15/2022 16915

MIXED USE
DEVELOPMENT

1 3 6 0 5  1 s t  A v e n u e  N .  # 1 0 0
Plymouth,  MN 55441 | ae-mn .com
P  763.412.4000  |   F  763.412.4090
A n d e r s o n  E n g i n e e r i n g  o f  M i n n e s o t a ,  L L C

DRAWING TITLE

CHECKED BY:DRAWN:DESIGNED:
LRKBNLRK

REVISION LOG
DESCRIPTION OF REVISIONSNO. DATE

INDEPENDENCE,
MINNESOTA

STODDARD COMPANIES

PRELIMINARY

WETLAND
MITIGATION

US HIGHWAY 12

N
EL

SO
N

 R
O

AD

N

0 100' 200'

C
O

U
N

TY
 L

IN
E 

R
O

AD
 S

E

LOT 1

LOT 6

LOT 7

LOT 8

LOT 2

LOT 3

LOT 4

LOT 5

LEGEND

LOT 10

LOT 9

LOT 11

OUTLOT B
OUTLOT C

OUTLOT D

OUTLOT A

C500

WETLAND AREAS

PROPERTY LIMITS
EXISTING MINOR CONTOUR
EXISTING MAJOR CONTOUR
PROPOSED MINOR CONTOUR
PROPOSED MAJOR CONTOUR
TYPE 1 WETLAND
TYPE 2 WETLAND
TYPE 3 WETLAND
WETLAND IMPACT AREA

966
965

TYPE 2 WETLAND
TYPE 3 WETLAND

TYPE 2 WETLAND

TYPE 2 WETLAND

TYPE 2 WETLAND

TYPE 2 WETLAND

TYPE 2 WETLAND

TYPE 3 WETLAND

TYPE 3 WETLAND

TYPE 3 WETLAND
(DITCH AREA ONLY)

TYPE 3 WETLAND

TYPE 1 WETLAND

TYPE 1 = 185968 SF. (4.27 AC.)
TYPE 2 = 377554 SF. (8.67 AC.)
TYPE 3 = 119507 SF. (2.74 AC.)
TOTAL = 638029 SF. (15.68 AC.)

WETLAND IMPACT AREAS
TYPE 1 = 9282 SF. (0.21 AC.)
TYPE 2 = 43223 SF. (0.99 AC.)
TYPE 3 = 1635 SF. (0.04 AC.)
TOTAL = 54139 SF. (1.24 AC.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
966

AutoCAD SHX Text
965



10,600 SF
COMMERCIAL

P

A

P

P

A
P

A
P

A
P

A

A

A

AP

P

PLOTTED: COMM. NO.

DRAWING NO.

11/15/2022 16915

MIXED USE
DEVELOPMENT

1 3 6 0 5  1 s t  A v e n u e  N .  # 1 0 0
Plymouth,  MN 55441 | ae-mn .com
P  763.412.4000  |   F  763.412.4090
A n d e r s o n  E n g i n e e r i n g  o f  M i n n e s o t a ,  L L C

DRAWING TITLE

CHECKED BY:DRAWN:DESIGNED:
LRKBNLRK

REVISION LOG
DESCRIPTION OF REVISIONSNO. DATE

INDEPENDENCE,
MINNESOTA

STODDARD COMPANIES

PRELIMINARY

US HIGHWAY 12

N
E

LS
O

N
 R

O
A

D

N

0 100' 200'

C
O

U
N

TY
 L

IN
E

 R
O

A
D

 S
E

LOT 1

LOT 6

LOT 7

LOT 8

LOT 2

LOT 3

LOT 4

LOT 5

LEGEND

LOT 10

LOT 9

LOT 11

OUTLOT B

OUTLOT C

OUTLOT D

OUTLOT A

PROPERTY LIMITS
ADJACENT PROPERTY
CONSTRUCTION LIMITS
NEW NATIVE SEED BUFFER
MIX MNDOT 35-221

NEW NATIVE SEED MIX
MNDOT 33-261

NEW TURF SEED MIX
MNDOT 25-131

3" DEEP, SHREDDED
HARDWOOD MULCH

COMMERCIAL GRADE POLY
EDGER2

1

1. REFER TO PLAN SHEET L2 FOR SODDING, SEEDING,
FERTILIZER AND TOPSOIL NOTES

2. ALL LANDSCAPING DISTURBED BEYOND THE NEW
PLANTINGS SHALL BE REPLACED IN KIND.

NOTES

L100

RESTORATION
PLAN

DECIDUOUS
OVERSTORY TREES

CONIFEROUS TREES



PLOTTED: COMM. NO.

DRAWING NO.

11/15/2022 16915

MIXED USE
DEVELOPMENT

1 3 6 0 5  1 s t  A v e n u e  N .  # 1 0 0
Plymouth,  MN 55441 |  ae-mn .com
P  763.412.4000  |   F  763.412.4090
A n d e r s o n  E n g i n e e r i n g  o f  M i n n e s o t a ,  L L C

DRAWING TITLE

CHECKED BY:DRAWN:DESIGNED:
LRKBNLRK

REVISION LOG
DESCRIPTION OF REVISIONSNO. DATE

INDEPENDENCE,
MINNESOTA

STODDARD COMPANIES

PRELIMINARY

L101

LANDSCAPE
DETAILS

1. LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL VISIT THE
PROJECT SITE PRIOR TO SUBMITTING A BID TO
BECOME COMPLETELY FAMILIAR WITH SITE
CONDITIONS.

2. ALL ROUGH AND FINISH GRADING TO BE DONE BY
OTHERS.

3. NO PLANTING SHALL BE INSTALLED UNTIL ALL
GRADING, BUILDING, CONSTRUCTION, UTILITY
WORK & IRRIGATION (IF APPLICABLE) HAS BEEN
COMPLETED IN THE AREAS TO BE PLANTED.

4. IT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR
TO IDENTIFY ALL UNDERGROUND CABLES,
CONDUITS, WIRES, ETC., ON THE PROPERTY.

5. IF THERE IS A DISCREPANCY BETWEEN THE
NUMBER OF PLANTS SHOWN ON THE PLAN AND
THE NUMBER OF PLANTS SHOWN IN THE PLANT
LIST, THE NUMBER OF PLANTS SHOWN ON THE
PLAN WILL TAKE PRECEDENCE.

6. ALL PROPOSED PLANT MATERIAL SHALL BE
LOCATED CAREFULLY AS SHOWN ON THE PLAN.
IF THE CONTRACTOR BELIEVES AN ERROR HAS
BEEN MADE REGARDING SPACING OR LOCATION
OF THE PLANT MATERIAL INDICATED ON THE
PLAN, NOTIFY THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT PRIOR
TO INSTALLATION.

7. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR
COMPLETE MAINTENANCE OF THE PLANT
MATERIAL (WATERING, SPRAYING, FERTILIZING,
MOWING, ETC.) UNTIL THE WORK HAS BEEN
ACCEPTED, BY THE OWNER.

8. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL
REPAIRS TO PROPERTY DAMAGE FROM PLANTING
OPERATIONS AT NO COST TO THE OWNER.

9. ALL NEWLY PLANTED PLANT MATERIAL SHALL BE
GUARANTEED THROUGH ONE CALENDAR YEAR
STARTING FROM THE DATE OF ACCEPTANCE
ESTABLISHED BY THE OWNER.

10. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL MEET WITH THE OWNER
OR OWNERS REPRESENTATIVE ON SITE WHEN
THEY FEEL THE PROJECT IS COMPLETE
ACCORDING TO THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS.  IF
ALL WORK IS SATISFACTORY AND COMPLETE
ACCORDING TO THE CONDITIONS OF THE
CONTRACT DOCUMENTS, THEN THE OWNER MUST
DECLARE THE PROJECT COMPLETE.  THIS
DECLARATION WILL CONSTITUTE AS THE
BEGINNING OF THE ONE (1) YEAR WARRANTEE
PERIOD FOR ALL PLANT MATERIAL.  THE OWNER
SHALL PROVIDE A LETTER WITH SIGNATURE
STATING THE DATE OF ACCEPTANCE.

11. WIND BURN OR OTHERWISE DAMAGED PLANT
MATERIAL WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED.

12. CONTRACTOR CAN SUBSTITUTE MACHINE MOVED
MATERIAL USING APPROPRIATE SIZE TREE SPADE
FOR B & B WITH OWNER APPROVAL.

13. THE PRACTICE OF STAKING SHOULD NOT ALLOW
NAILS, SCREWS, WIRES, ETC. TO PENETRATE THE
OUTER SURFACE OF THE TREES.

14. THE CONTRACTOR WILL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR
THE REMOVAL OF ALL TREE STAKES, GUYS,
STRAPS AND TRUNK PROTECTION MEASURES
FOLLOWING THE COMPLETION OF THE
WARRANTEE PERIOD OR AS DIRECTED BY THE
OWNER.

15. LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR IS REQUIRED TO
PROVIDE THE OWNER WITH MAINTENANCE
INFORMATION DURING THE GUARANTEE PERIOD
RELATING TO WATERING, FERTILIZING, PRUNING,
PEST CONTROL, AND RELATED ITEMS. THIS WILL
BE PREPARED AND DELIVERED TO THE OWNER
AFTER PROVISIONAL INSPECTION APPROVAL HAS
BEEN GIVEN BY THE OWNER AND/OR LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT.

16. INSTALL CORRUGATED PLASTIC TREE GUARDS,
WHITE IN COLOR, WITH THE SIZE OF TUBE 1" DIA.
(MIN.) LARGER THAN THE CALIPER OF THE TREE
TO BE PROTECTED.

17. CONTRACTOR TO FURNISH & STALL PLASTIC
EDGING AS SHOWN ON THE PLANS & DETAILS.
PLASTIC EDGING SHALL BE MEDIUM DENSITY

POLYETHYLENE WITH U.V.  INHIBITOR, BLACK IN
COLOR, WITH A TOTAL DEPTH OF 5” (1” DIA. TOP
AND 4” SHAFT WITH 1.5” V EVERY 3-1/2 FEET OF
EDGING.

18. LANDSCAPE FABRIC (FILTER MAT) TO HAVE A
COMBINED WEIGHT OF 4.5-5.5 OZ. PER S.Y. FABRIC
SHOULD BE U.V. STABILIZED AND HAVE A FIVE
YEAR MINIMUM WEATHERABILITY FACTOR IN FULL
SUNLIGHT. FABRIC TO BE PHILLIPS DUON R OR
EQUIVALENT. SAMPLE REQUIRED FOR APPROVAL.

19. LANDSCAPE BED MULCH SHALL BE SHREDDED
HARDWOOD MULCH.  MULCH SHALL BE INSTALLED
AT A DEPTH OF 3" WITH NO WEED BARRIER
LANDSCAPE FABRIC.

20. 3" DEPTH SHREDDED HARDWOOD MULCH SHALL
BE INSTALLED UNDER ALL TREES AND SHRUBS
THAT ARE ISOLATED FROM GROUNDCOVER
AREAS AND GENERAL SHRUB MASSES.

21. CALIPER OF TREES UP TO AND INCLUDING 4"
SHALL BE MEASURED AT 6" ABOVE GROUND
LEVEL, AND 12" ABOVE GROUND LEVEL FOR
LARGER SIZES.

22. FOR BALLED & BURLAP PLANT MATERIAL, REMOVE
THE TOP HALF OF THE BURLAP FROM THE ROOT
BALL.  WIRE CAGES, STRAPS, ETC. SHALL BE
REMOVED FROM THE TOP HALF OF THE
ROOTBALL BEFORE INSTALLATION.

23. ALL CONTAINER MATERIAL SHALL HAVE BEEN
GROWN IN CONTAINER FOR A MINIMUM OF 6
MONTHS PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.

24. SHRUBS AND GROUNDCOVER SHALL BE PLANTED
A MINIMUM OF ONE HALF THEIR ON-CENTER
SPACING FROM PAVING EDGE UNLESS
OTHERWISE NOTED.

25. DECIDUOUS SHRUBS SHALL HAVE MINIMUM OF
FIVE (5) CANES AT SPECIFIED HEIGHT UNLESS
OTHERWISE NOTED IN PLANT SCHEDULE.

26. LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE AND
INSTALL NURSERY GROWN PLANT MATERIAL
CONFORMING TO THE REQUIREMENTS AND
RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE LATEST EDITION OF
ANSI Z60.1 STANDARDS UNLESS OTHERWISE
NOTED IN THE PLANS OR SPECIFICATIONS.

GENERAL LANDSCAPE  NOTES:

1. LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL ENSURE THAT NEW
TREES MOVED ONTO THE SITE ARE DUG FROM
SIMILAR SITES WITH SIMILAR SOILS TO THE SOILS OF
THIS PROJECT (HEAVY TO HEAVY, LIGHT TO LIGHT.
HEAVY TO LIGHT SOILS). CONTRACTOR SHALL REVIEW
SOIL CONDITIONS/TYPES WITH OWNER/LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.

2. ALL NEWLY INSTALLED PLANT MATERIAL SHALL BE
PLANTED IN WELL-DRAINED AREAS. NOTIFY THE
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT PRIOR TO INSTALLATION IF
ANY PLANT MATERIAL IS LOCATED IN DRAINAGE
SWALES OR WET & POORLY DRAINED AREAS.

3. ALL PLANTINGS SHALL RECEIVE FERTILIZER AS
FOLLOWS:

3.1. SUMMER AND FALL PLANTING: 0-20-20 GRANULAR
(IN SAUCER AROUND PLANT AT THE RATE OF 12
OZ. PER 2-3" CAL. TREE & 6 OZ. PER SHRUB).

3.2. SPRING PLANTING:  10-10-10 GRANULAR (APPLY
ABOVE REFERENCED FERTILIZER AT A RATE OF
12 OZ. PER 1-1/2” CAL. TREE OR LARGER & 6 OZ.
PER SHRUB & PERENNIAL.

4. ALL PLANTINGS SHALL RECEIVE AN AMENDED SOIL
MIX CONSISTING OF THREE (3) PARTS:

4.1. 45% APPROVED TOPSOIL (ONE SITE PREFERRED)
4.2. 45% ORGANIC MATTER (TYPE 1 SPHAGNUM PEAT

MOSS FINELY DIVIDED WITH A PH OF 3.1 - 5.0.)
4.3. 10% SAND (FINE CLEAN MASONRY SAND)

5. AREAS CONFINED TO A MASS PLANTING AREA
(PLANTING BED) SHALL RECEIVE THE AMENDED SOIL
MIX AT MIN. 12" DEPTH THROUGHOUT THE PLANTING
AREA. AMENDED SOIL MIX SHALL BE MIXED
THOROUGHLY AND INSTALLED IN 6” LIFTS.

6. AREAS TO RECEIVE SOD OR SEED SHALL HAVE A 6”
MINIMUM DEPTH OF TOPSOIL. TOPSOIL SHALL
PROVIDE FERTILE, FRIABLE, NATURAL LOAM,
SURFACE SOIL, REASONABLY FREE OF SUBSOIL, CLAY
CLUMPS, BRUSH WEEDS AND OTHER LITTER, AND
FREE OF ROOTS, STUMPS, STONE LARGER THAN 1” IN
ANY DIMENSION, AND OTHER EXTRANEOUS OR TOXIC
MATTER HARMFUL TO PLANT GROWTH.

7. SOD SHALL BE HIGHLAND SOD, 30" X 100' ROLLS
PREFERRED WHERE APPLICABLE, TO BE LAID
PARALLEL WITH THE CONTOURS AND HAVE
STAGGERED JOINTS. ON SLOPES STEEPER THAN 3:1
OR DRAINAGE SWALES, THE SOD SHALL BE STAKED
INTO THE GROUND. SCARIFY THE EXISTING GRADES
WITH FIELD CULTIVATOR PRIOR TO PLACING OF
TOPSOIL AND FINISH GRADING FOR SOD.
IMMEDIATELY PRIOR TO PLACING SOD, CONTRACTOR
SHALL APPLY 10-6-4 FERTILIZER AT THE RATE OF 10
POUNDS PER 1000 SQ. FT.

8. ALL AREAS SPECIFIED AS 'GENERAL LAWN SEED' TO
BE SEEDED WITH PREMIUM SUNNY SEED MIX
INCLUDING:

8.1. 20% RAVEN STAR KENTUCKY BLUEGRASS 10%

MIDNIGHT STAR KENTUCKY BLUEGRASS 15%
WASHINGTON KENTUCKY BLUEGRASS 5%
THERMAL BLUE BLUEGRASS 35% SPLENDID
PERENNIAL RYEGRASS 15% ZODIAC CHEWINGS
FESCUE(SEED MIX AVAILABLE AT GERTENS
1-651-450-1501).  SEED SHALL BE APPLIED AT A
RATE OF 150 LBS./AC. WITH 2 TONS SHREDDED
AND PUNCHED IN PLACE STRAW PER ACRE.
HYDROSEEDING & MULCHING IS AND
ACCEPTABLE ALTERNATE.

9. ALL AREAS SPECIFIED AS 'ROUGH SEED' TO BE
SEEDED WITH MNDOT SEED MIX 250 AT A RATE OF 150
LBS./AC. WITH 2 TONS SHREDDED AND PUNCHED IN
PLACE STRAW PER ACRE. HYDROSEEDING &
MULCHING IS AN ACCEPTABLE ALTERNATE.

10. ALL AREAS SPECIFIED AS 'WET AREA SEED' TO BE
SEEDED WITH MNDOT MIX 310.  BROAD CAST, DRILL
AND/OR HYDROSEED AT A RATE OF 150 LBS./AC. WITH
2 TONS SHREDDED AND PUNCHED IN PLACE STRAW
PER ACRE. SEED MIX SHALL BE ABLE TO WITHSTAND
PERIODIC FLOODING.

11. ALL AREAS SPECIFIED AS "MNDOT 25-131" TO BE
SEEDED PER MNDOT RECOMMENDED APPLICATION
RATES AND METHODS.  "MNDOT 25-131" OR
APPROVED EQUAL IS A BASIS OF DESIGN.
CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL EROSION
CONTROL NEEDS TO ESTABLISH VIGOROUS GROWTH
PER MNDOT 2014 SEEDING MANUAL STANDARDS.

GENERAL SODDING,
SEEDING & TOPSOIL  NOTES:

MIN.
6"

1"

LAWN SURFACE

UNDISTURBED OR COMPACTED SOIL

PLANTING SOIL

LINE OF PLANTING PIT WHEN
PLANTED INDIVIDUALLY

UNDISTURBED OR COMPACTED SOIL

3" DEPTH HARDWOOD MULCH

PAVED SURFACE, IF APPLICABLE

2"

ORIGINAL SLOPE

ORIGINAL SLOPE

12
"-

18
"

NOTE:
-3" DP. SHREDDED HARDWOOD MULCH SHALL BE USED IN

ALL LANDSCAPE PLANTINGS AREAS AND UNDER TREES
ISOLATED FROM PLANTING AREAS UNLESS IDENTIFIED
OTHERWISE.

-MULTI-STEM TREES SHALL NOT RECEIVE STAKING.
THEY SHALL CONFORM TO ALL OTHER DECIDUOUS
TREE PLANTING REQUIREMENTS.

CENTER TREE IN HOLE, UPRIGHT

SINGLE STRAIGHT LEADER

TREE TIE SECURED TO STAKE.  SECURE TO
TREE WITH ANTI-CHAFFING MATERIAL.
ALLOW FOR MOVEMENT OF TREE.

WRAP TREE WITH TREE WRAPPING
MATERIAL AS SPECIFIED TO 1ST BRANCH

LAWN OR PLANTING BED EDGE
(SPADE EDGE IN ALL LAWN AREAS)

6" MIN. DIA. EARTH SAUCER

(3) TREE STAKES DRIVEN A MIN. 2'
BELOW GRADE (EQUALLY SPACED)

3" DEPTH
HARDWOOD MULCH

3" HEIGHT TAMPED WATER BASIN AT
EDGE OF EARTH SAUCER

FINISHED GRADE

REMOVE BURLAP, TWINE, ROPE AND
WIRE FROM TOP HALF OF ROOTBALL

PLANTING SOIL

MOUND MIN. 6"

UNDISTURBED OR COMPACTED SOIL

AFTER EXPOSING TREE ROOT
FLAIR, PLANT SO ROOT FLAIR IS

AT 2" ABOVE ADJACENT FINISH
GRADE

NORTHWEST
PREVAILING
WINDS

SOUTHEAST
PREVAILING
WINDS

TREE TIE SECURED TO
STAKE. SECURE TO TREE

WITH ANTI-CHAFFING
MATERIAL.  ALLOW FOR

MOVEMENT OF TREE.

(3) TREE STAKES DRIVEN A MIN. 2'
BELOW GRADE (EQUALLY SPACED)

PLAN VIEW OF TREE STAKING
NOT TO SCALE

HARDWOOD MULCH
LAWN

FERTILIZER PLANT TAB

FERTILIZER PLANT TAB

AutoCAD SHX Text
3x ROOT BALL





LEVEL 1
0"

LEVEL 2
11' - 6"

ROOF
22' - 0"

T.O. PARAPET
27' - 0"

10
' -

 6
" 
F
L
O

O
R
 T

O
 C

E
I
L
I
N
G

36
" 
JO

I
S
T

1/4" / 1' - 0" 1/4" / 1' - 0"

ROOFTOP AIR CONDITIONER, 1 PER UNIT

10
' -

 0
 3

/4
" 
F
L
O

O
R
 T

O
 C

E
I
L
I
N
G

16
" 
JO

I
S
T

2
2
' -

 0
"

STODDARD COMPANIES | AUTO CONDOS
10/25/2021

BUILDING ADDRESS

3/8" = 1'-0"1.0
1 BUILDING SECTION

1
1.0

1
1.0

1/16" = 1'-0"1.0
2 ROOF PLAN

LEVEL 1

0"

LEVEL 2

11' - 6"

ROOF

22' - 0"

T.O. PARAPET

27' - 0"

10
' 
- 

6
" 
F
L
O

O
R
 T

O
 C

E
I
L
I
N
G

3
6
" 
J
O

I
S
T

1/4" / 1' - 0" 1/4" / 1' - 0"

OPTION: SOLAR ARRAY

ROOFTOP AIR CONDITIONER, 1 PER UNIT

10
' 
- 

0
 3

/
4
" 
F
L
O

O
R
 T

O
 C

E
I
L
I
N
G

16
" 
J
O

I
S
T

2
2
' 
- 

0
"

1

1.0

1

1.0

3/8" = 1'-0"1.0

1 BUILDING SECTION

1/16" = 1'-0"1.0

2 ROOF PLAN

LEVEL 1

0"

LEVEL 2

11' - 6"

ROOF

22' - 0"

T.O. PARAPET

27' - 0"

1
0
' 
-
 
6
" 
F
L
O

O
R
 T

O
 
C
E
I
L
I
N
G

3
6
" 
J
O

I
S
T

1/4" / 1' - 0" 1/4" / 1' - 0"

OPTION: SOLAR ARRAY

1
0
' 
-
 
0
 
3
/
4
" 
F
L
O

O
R
 T

O
 
C
E
I
L
I
N
G

1
6
" 
J
O

I
S
T

2
2
' 
-
 
0
"

1

1.0

1

1.0

3/8" = 1'-0"1.0

1 BUILDING SECTION

1/16" = 1'-0"1.0

2 ROOF PLAN

LEVEL 1

0"

LEVEL 2

11' - 6"

ROOF

22' - 0"

T.O. PARAPET

27' - 0"

1
0
' 
-
 
6
" 
F
L
O

O
R
 T

O
 
C
E
I
L
I
N
G

3
6
" 
J
O

I
S
T

1/4" / 1' - 0" 1/4" / 1' - 0"

1
0
' 
-
 
0
 
3
/
4
" 
F
L
O

O
R
 T

O
 
C
E
I
L
I
N
G

1
6
" 
J
O

I
S
T

2
2
' 
-
 
0
"

1

1.0

1

1.0

3/8" = 1'-0"1.0

1 BUILDING SECTION

1/16" = 1'-0"1.0

2 ROOF PLAN
































































































































	18-0199 CONST PLANS 12-14-22.pdf
	18-0199 01 SHEET COVER SHEET 12-14-22
	18-0199 02 SHEET GRADING PLAN - OVERVIEW 9-23-22
	18-0199 03 SHEET GRADING PLAN - NORTH 9-23-22
	18-0199 04 SHEET GRADING PLAN - EAST CENTRAL 6-8-22
	18-0199 05 SHEET GRADING PLAN - WEST CENTRAL 6-8-22
	18-0199 06 SHEET GRADING PLAN - SOUTH 6-8-22
	18-0199 07 SHEET SWPPP PROJECT INFORMATION 9-23-22
	18-0199 08 SHEET SWPPP NARRATIVE 6-3-22
	18-0199 09 SHEET SWPPP - NORTH 9-23-22
	18-0199 10 SHEET SWPPP - EAST CENTRAL 6-8-22
	18-0199 11 SHEET SWPPP - WEST CENTRAL 12-14-22
	18-0199 12 SHEET SWPPP - SOUTH 6-8-22
	18-0199 13 SHEET STREET & STORM - KOCHS CROSSING 9-23-22
	18-0199 14 SHEET STREET & STORM - WILLIAMS WAY (STA 0+00 - STA 12+00) 12-14-22
	18-0199 15 SHEET STREET & STORM - WILLIAMS WAY (STA 12+00 - STA 27+00) 12-14-22
	18-0199 16 SHEET STREET & STORM - WILLIAMS WAY (STA 27+00 - STA 39+65) 6-8-22
	18-0199 17 SHEET WETLAND BUFFER & TREE PRESERVATION PLAN 12-14-22
	18-0199 18 SHEET DETAILS 6-3-22
	18-0199 19 SHEET DETAILS 6-9-22
	18-0199 20 SHEET DETAILS 6-3-22

	18-0199 TURN LANE PLANS 8-11-22-COUNTY AND City Signed.pdf
	18-0199 01 SHEET COVER SHEET 8-11-22
	18-0199 02 SHEET TYPICAL SECTION & CONSTRUCTION NOTES 8-11-22
	18-0199 03 SHEET REMOVAL, EROSION CONTROL, & TURF ESTABLISHMENT PLAN 8-11-22
	18-0199 04 SHEET TURN LANE - GRADING PLAN 8-11-22
	18-0199 05 SHEET CONSTRUCTION PLAN & PROFILE - CSAH NO. 90 8-11-22
	18-0199 06 SHEET CROSS SECTIONS 8-11-22
	18-0199 07 SHEET CROSS SECTIONS 8-11-22
	18-0199 08 SHEET CROSS SECTIONS 8-11-22

	IN415 Koch Farm Review Memo 2.pdf
	MEMORANDUM

	9285 Highway 12 Site Plan_Combined-compressed.pdf
	Independence PUD Application
	16915 Independence Business Park (Part 1 of 2)
	Sheets and Views
	X100 EXISTING CONDITIONS & DEMOLITION PLAN
	C100 SITE PLAN
	C200 UTILITY PLAN
	C300 OVERALL EROSION CONTROL
	C301 EROSION CONTROL PLAN (NORTH)
	C302 EROSION CONTROL PLAN (SOUTH)


	16915 Independence Business Park (Part 2 of 2)
	Sheets and Views
	C400 OVERALL GRADING PLAN
	C401 GRADING PLAN NORTH
	C402 GRADING PLAN SOUTH
	C500 WETLAND MITIGATION
	L101 LANDSCAPE DETAILS


	Compiled Exhibits_AutoCondo_Revised 11.11.22
	inde pud 1
	inde pud 2
	inde pud 3 

	16915_C5 WETLAND MITIGATION12-7.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	C5 WETLAND MITIGATION



